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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MGER

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
il TR CRNE RN\ B tF
GOV RMB'OOO  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
LT \RETr ARETT AR%Tr ARETRT
Revenue and Profit/(loss) BARER/ (B58)
Revenue A 572,643 816,665 737,128 628,235 758,671
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBATRR/ (B518) 96,676 42,846 6,884 (966,928)  (255,967)
Income tax (expense)/credit FigR (L) /E% (84,215) (33512) (1,142) (30,951) 32,478
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREH/(58) 12,461 9,334 5742 (997,879  (223489)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: UTATEERR/(E8)
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERRE 12,142 15,824 3,480 (958,429) (220,974)
Non-controlling interests JEE R 319 (6,490) 2,262 (39,450) (2,515)
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Non-current assets ErRBEE 364,695 541,483 603,732 678,809 727,711
Current assets TEEE 966,352 936,626 1,209,679  1,115437 2,554,276
Current liabilities mEBAaE (896,919)  (780,812)  (1,284,611)  (1,097,917)  (1,942,182)
Non-current liabilties ERBEE (166,763)  (499,156)  (439,991)  (507,243)  (151,559)
Net assets BEFE 267,365 198,141 178,809 189,086 1,188,246
Equity attributable to: DN ATERES
Equity shareholders of the Company KRREERRR 267,873 261,244 232,938 238,552 1,197,867
Non-controling interests R (508) (63,109) (54,129) (49,466) (9,621)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”)
of Boer Power Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Boer
Power”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | report to
shareholders the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Year 2021” or the “year”).

In 2021, with the rollout of COVID-19 vaccines and the launch of
measures for economic recovery, the global economy showed
signs of recovery in the first half of the year. While COVID-19
pandemic (the “Pandemic”) subsides gradually, multiple variants
such as Delta and Omicron spread around the world in the
second half of the year, which further weakened the momentum
of global economic recovery. Despite the volatile Pandemic, the
Chinese economy continued its stable recovery and maintained
a globally leading position in terms of economic development
and pandemic containment. During the year, the gross domestic
product (“GDP”) exceeded RMB114 ftrillion, increased by 8.1%
year-on-year, and the economic performance remained stable in
general. The fixed asset investment in China exceeded RMB54
trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 4.9% and a two-
year average growth of 3.9%. The Chinese economy continued
to face challenges arising from the increasingly complex, severe
and uncertain external environment. Confronted by the various
domestic and external adverse factors in the macro-economies
both at home and abroad, the Group actively adjusted its
operation strategies during the year to increase income and
reduce expenses in a stable and prudent manner. It has also
strengthened its management efforts and curbed unnecessary
expenditures to enhance profitability, which was proven effective
to a certain extent. Leveraging the Group’s strenuous efforts in
exploring the intelligent power distribution industry over the years,
coupled with the advantages from its leading technologies and
business quality, the Group has maintained its competitive edges
in pricing with continuous improvement in its gross profit margin.

During the year, as affected by the unfavorable factors such as
the ravaging global pandemic and delayed demand, the revenue
of the Group was RMB572.6 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 29.9%. Having benefited from the Group’s
continuous product and technological upgrade, the gross profit
margin continued to increase to 33.5%, representing a year-
on-year increase of 4.5 percentage points. Meanwhile, with the
continuous implementation of refined management strategy,
the Group has maintained good operation efficiency, resulting in
further decrease in administrative and other operating expenses.
Profit from operations, profit before taxation and profit for the
year amounted to RMB124.1 million (2020: RMB78.8 million),
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FREHRE @

RMB96.7 million (2020: RMB42.8 million) and RMB12.5 million
(2020: RMB9.3 million) respectively, representing a year-on-
year increase of 57.5%, 125.6% and 33.5% respectively. As the
Group continued to implement stringent internal control system,
its trade receivables, trade and bills payables and inventory were
maintained at a reasonable level at the end of the period, while
finance costs continued to decrease. The Group has recorded
positive operating cash flows consecutively for the past six
years. In addition, the Group’s gearing structure has improved
significantly due to its disposal of certain subsidiaries with net
liability, which greatly reduced the liability of the Group during the
year.

Boer Power is one of the few service providers of one-stop
intelligent power integrated management solutions for various
sectors in the industry. Leveraging its own “Cloud Smart” big data
platform and on the basis of modern communication and Internet
technology, it has developed a power consumption database
with the power consumption data collected from customers and
enterprises on a continuous and real-time basis, which is able to
provide its customers with one-stop intelligent power integrated
management solutions for intelligent power distribution, power
consumption and energy efficiency management, including
hardware integrated systems, customised operating systems
and software, as well as one-stop intelligent power integrated
management solutions for products and services such as online
and offline operation, maintenance and management. Through
the database, customers may enjoy safe, highly efficient and
energy-saving power consumption, hence maximising the
economic benefits of their power consumption. With over 35 years
of professional experience and consistent efforts in optimizing
the Company’s products and services, the Group is committed
to providing more comprehensive and professional intelligent
power integrated management solutions, as well as components
and spare parts products and services for its customers. In
recent years, the Group has also gradually optimised the power
consumption databases of different industries. Combined with
years of experience accumulated in respect of intelligent power
management technology, Boer Power is able to ensure safe and
reliable operation while committing to reducing operating costs,
thereby creating actual economic benefits with services of higher
quality for the customers.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FEHRE @

With the rapid emergence and flourishing of digital economy, the
innovation of technologies such as 5G, cloud computing, artificial
intelligence, blockchain and Internet of Things (“loT”) has been
expedited. Being the physical carrier of the information systems
of various industries, data centers have become an indispensable
and critical infrastructure in the economy and the society, playing
a vital role in the development of digital economy. Currently, in
China, the electricity consumption of data centers accounts for
2% of the national electricity consumption, and continues to
exhibit an upward trend. Capitalizing on its own technological
advantages, good reputation and years of exploration in the data
center power distribution market, the Group will make full use of
the opportunities brought by the development of digital economy
to constantly optimize and promote the “One-stop Data Center
Solution”, with a view to satisfying the demand of data centers
in different industries and further expanding the Group’s market
share.

In addition, the urban rail transit industry in the PRC has
experienced rapid development in recent years, and gradually
materialised the development of network transformation. The
Draft Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan and the Long-Range
Objectives Through the Year 2035 ((+MHAREF N _—_E=F
FREOZEMEESR)) specifically stated that the operating
mileage of urban rail transit in the PRC will increase by 3,000
kilometers during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, and it is
expected that the cumulative passenger throughput will exceed
100 billion person-times. With the rapid urban development in the
PRC, ecological problems become increasingly prominent. The
government has been placing more emphasis on environmental
protection issues and a number of national policies regarding
wastewater treatment were introduced in 2021 to promote the
utilisation of wastewater as a resource, through which both
the wastewater treatment volume and investment in industrial
wastewater treatment has increased. As the government
attached greater importance to environmental protection issues,
the market demand for sewage treatment will be released at a
faster pace, indicating enormous potential for development of
the industry. The Group has been committing itself to providing
diversified services and customised solutions for various
infrastructure construction and municipal construction projects,
including intelligent power solutions for buildings, rail transit,
wastewater treatment and different types of transportation hub
projects. The rise of new infrastructures and digital economy
creates the need to further optimise planning and address the
problems of energy consumption and mismatch of demand and
supply, which brings new demand and growth potential for the
business development of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FREHRE @

During the year, the Group continued to provide customised
intelligent, energy-conserving and highly efficient system
solutions, and offered long-term maintenance and consultancy
services and products to the customers. Through these efforts,
it has gained wide market recognition, established sound brand
reputation and developed a stable and long-term relationship
with clients, including a number of top Fortune Global 500
companies as well as domestic and foreign large-scale and long-
term corporate customers, and a range of domestic and foreign
leading enterprises, such as telecommunication and data center
operators, enabling the Group to maintain a leading position in
the industry in terms of market share in the high-end markets.

Regarding the overseas market, with the ongoing Pandemic
remained out of control and the implementation of a series of
restriction policies by various overseas countries, the Group’s
overseas infrastructure projects under construction or planning
progressed unsatisfactorily. This posed a huge challenge to the
Group in the bidding and implementation of overseas projects
during the year. In order to address the mid-to-long term
negative impacts brought by the recurring Pandemic overseas,
the Company will continue to adopt prudent operating and
financial measures. Meanwhile, the Group’s subsidiary in Spain
actively adjusted its operation strategies and continued to provide
high-end power distribution products and services for customers
in Europe and other overseas countries, contributing a stable
income stream to the Group.

The Pandemic remains a threat globally, coupled with
unpredictable trajectory of geopolitics and war conflicts, which
added new uncertainties to the recovery and prospect of the
global economy. Amidst the highly evolving macro-environment,
the Group remained committed to innovation and focused its
investment in research and development so as to maintain
and continuously enhance the Group’s leading technological
advantages and strengths in terms of power cloud data platform.
Looking into 2022, on the basis of its leading technological
advantages in terms of intelligent power management data
platform, the Group will follow the general trend of digital
economy and 5G development, at the same time keeping abreast
of the favourable national policies for infrastructure such as urban
rail transit to develop long-term core competitiveness of products,
aiming to restore growth of its sales business and further improve
profitability. Continuing to pursue the solid and prudent operation
strategy, the Group will strictly review the project risks and strive
to resume sales growth by enhancing and optimizing its own
technologies, products and services continuously. The Group
is confident that it will be able to maintain stable performance
despite the challenging macroscopic conditions.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
EE®RE @)

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most
sincere gratitude to every single staff of Boer who has shown
perseverance and diligence in the face of adversity presented
by the outbreak of the Pandemic. | would also like to extend my
gratitude to our shareholders, investors, long-term customers
and business partners for their continual devotion and consistent
support. We will continue to adhere to our initial vision, uphold the
pragmatic operation approach in active pursuit of development
and deliver actual results to reward the trust of all of you.

Qian Yixiang
Chairman

25 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWR S

MARKET REVIEW

During the year, the Pandemic continued to wreak havoc in
countries across the globe, and the emergence of the Omicron
variant cast a shadow on the global economic recovery. In
2020, in an effort to alleviate the economic downturn caused
by the Pandemic, various central banks around the world
slashed interest rates. Coupled with the impaired supply chain
transmission last year, the delay in the supply of commodities
has magnified the impact on inflation, which has become
an important factor in curtailing global economic growth. In
2021, the Chinese economy continued its steady recovery and
maintained the globally leading position in terms of economic
development and pandemic containment with all major indicators
achieved the expected goals. During the year, the GDP
exceeded RMB114 trillion, increased by 8.1% year-on-year, and
the economic performance remained stable in general. The fixed
asset investment of China exceeded RMB54 trillion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 4.9% and a two-year average growth
of 3.9%. In terms of infrastructure investment, national policies
such as the moderately advanced infrastructure investment
are taking effect, and the pace of issuance of special bonds
by local governments has been accelerated since the second
half of 2021. Meanwhile, the 102 key projects identified in the
“14th Five-Year Plan” have been launched successively, and
policy support such as fiscal and monetary investment has been
strengthened, all of which have resulted in a steady recovery of
fixed asset investment.

Recently, the innovation of technologies such as the Internet, big
data, cloud computing, artificial intelligence and blockchain has
been expedited and increasingly more of these technologies have
been integrated into different aspects of economic and social
development during every stage of the process. With the pace of
development, range of radiation and degree of influence reaching
at an unprecedented level, the digital economy is becoming a
key driver of restructuring the global key resources, reshaping
the global economic structure and changing global competitive
landscape. The booming digital economy in China has become
a key driver of economic growth and social development. The
PRC’s internet data center (“IDC”) market has entered a period
of rapid development. According to data from Synergy Research,
China has become the second largest IDC market in the world,
accounting for 10% of the global market share. In 2021, the
national electricity consumption of the entire society reached
8.3 trillion kWh, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.3%,
an increase of 14.7% as compared to the corresponding period
in 2019, with a two-year average growth of 7.1%. The national
data center energy consumption reached 216.6 billion kWh,
representing an increase of 44% over 2020 and accounting for
approximately 2.6% of the electricity consumption of the entire
society. This proportion is expected to continue to rise as the
market volume and demand continue to grow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continued)

EEEF W& DT

From the perspective of social demand, the electricity
consumption of the entire society has also maintained a
continuous growth trend for the last decade. Even in 2020
when the Pandemic was raging, the electricity consumption of
the entire society still achieved a growth rate of 3.1%, hitting a
record high of 7.51 trilion kWh, and the huge demand has led
the power grid giants to continuously increase their investment in
the national power grid. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period,
the State Grid Corporation of China (“State Grid”) plans to invest
US$350 billion in a bid to promote power grid transformation and
upgrade, while China Southern Power Grid Co., Ltd. (“Southern
Grid”) will plan to invest approximately RMB670 billion with a
view to accelerating the development of digital power grids
and modern power grids, with the two major national power
grid giants planning to invest more than RMB2.9 ftrillion in total.
Among them, Southern Grid plans to invest RMB320 billion in
the area of distribution network in the “14th Five-Year Plan”,
accounting for approximately 50% of the total investment. In the
medium to long term, the increasing investment in the power
grids, particularly the distribution network, will undoubtedly
provide strong support for the Company’s business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

While the global economy gradually recovered from the
Pandemic, the pace of recovery varies widely across different
countries. The Omicron variant has wreaked havoc in various
countries, dragging the progress of their economic recovery.
Amidst the uncertain economic environment, the Group has
actively adjusted its business strategies under the premise of
developing high-quality business while maintaining its competitive
edges in pricing by leveraging the advantages from its sizable
scale and high technology. Meanwhile, under the refined
operation, the Group has provided quality services for the target
customer group with high efficiency and effectiveness. In addition,
through professional operation and management, the Group has
implemented its business vision and operation policies, focused
on businesses with profit and development potential, and actively
developed the Group’s integrated commodity-linked services,
thereby enhancing its overall operating efficiency. During the year,
affected by the unfavorable factors such as the ravaging global
pandemic and delayed demand, the revenue of the Group was
RMB572.6 million (2020: RMB816.7 million), representing a year-
on-year decrease of 29.9%. However, having benefited from the
Group’s continuous optimization of technology, product services
and sales structure, the gross profit margin continued to increase
1o 33.5% (2020: 29.0%), representing a year-on-year increase
of 4.5 percentage points, while the gross profit was RMB192.0
million. Profit from operations, profit before taxation and profit for
the year amounted to RMB124.1 million (2020: RMB78.8 million),
RMB96.7 million (2020: RMB42.8 million) and RMB12.5 million
(2020: RMB9.3 million) respectively, representing a year-on-year
increase of 57.5%, 125.6% and 33.5% respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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During the year, as the Group continued to implement the
stringent internal control system, strictly monitor and manage
current assets and liabilities, its trade receivables and inventory
maintained at a healthy level. Meanwhile, in order to fully control
internal costs and expenses, the Group has well prepared a
sound budget, strengthened management efforts and curbed
unnecessary expenditures, thereby enhancing profitability. During
the year, as a continued effort to optimize its debt structure,
the Group has significantly reduced borrowings, cut finance
costs on an ongoing basis, and continued to improve its gearing
structure, thereby recording positive operating cash flows for six
consecutive years.

During the year, the business of the Group can be divided into
the following two major segments:

— Intelligent Power Integrated Management Solutions (“IEM
Solutions”); and

— Components and Spare Parts Business (“CSP Business”).

As indicated by Southern Grid in the “Power Grid Development
Plan of Southern Grid for the ‘14th Five-Year' Period” ({FE /7
BE [+ORE] BHEEMRE)), Southern Grid’s investment
during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period will increase by 33%
as compared to the “13th Five-Year” period, among which
RMB320 billion will be invested in the field of distribution network,
accounting for approximately 50% of the total investment.
The investment will mainly be devoted to the construction of
intelligent distribution network, including 100% self-healing
power distribution and related construction of digital distribution
network, in an effort to promote the integration of digitalization
and intelligence, and promote the upgrade of intelligent power
transmission, power distribution and power consumption. The
power distribution network is a key link in energy production,
conversion and consumption, as well as a supporting platform
for renewable energy consumption, a platform for diversified
massive information and data, and a trading platform for multiple
market entities. Against the backdrop of “carbon peak” and
“carbon neutrality” goals, the power distribution network is
gradually becoming the core of the power system. With this
development opportunity, the Group is confident that the market
demand for intelligent power distribution terminal equipment
and ecosystem will increase over time, which shows the huge
development potential of the Group in this field. Through its
own big data platform “Cloud Smart” and based on modern
communication and Internet technology, the Group has
developed solutions including hardware integrated systems,
customised operating systems and software, as well as one-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continued)
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stop intelligent power integrated management solutions for
products and services used in online and offline operation and
maintenance management, in an effort to help customers achieve
intelligent power distribution and power consumption, thereby
enhancing performance management capabilities. In addition
to ensuring the safe operation of equipment and enhancing
efficiency through its advantages in the field of technology, the
Group also made use of the Internet to monitor electrical terminal
equipment around the clock for data collection and two-way
transmission. As a leading service provider in the industry with
more than 35 years of extensive industry experience, the Group
has first-mover competitive advantages in providing customers
with almost unique one-stop intelligent power integrated
management solutions in the industry. In recent years, the Group
is committed to improving the power consumption database
of various industries, which has achieved remarkable results. In
addition, Boer Power has accumulated strong intelligent power
management technology over the years. The Group not only
provides safe and stable intelligent power distribution services,
but also strives to control operating costs in a bid to create actual
commercial value and benefits for customers.

With the rapid development of new-generation information
technologies such as 5G, cloud computing and artificial
intelligence, the accelerated integration of information technology
and traditional industries, and the booming development of the
digital economy, data centers, as the physical carrier for the
operation of information systems in various industries, have
become an indispensable key infrastructure for economic and
social operations and played a vital role in the development
of the digital economy. In 2021, the national data center
energy consumption reached 216.6 billion kWh, representing
a substantial increase of 44% as compared to 2020 and
accounting for approximately 2.6% of the electricity consumption
of the entire society, with a momentum of sustained growth.
Over the years, the Group has devoted considerable efforts
in exploring the data center power distribution market with an
aim to continuously optimise its power distribution technology,
striving to seek breakthroughs to meet the changing needs of
the market. Meanwhile, leveraging its “One-stop Data Center
Solution” service, the Group’s services have a positive brand
image in the market, which has led to a continuous increase in its
market share. Fully seizing the development opportunities of the
digital economy, the Group will leverage its strong brand power
to expand income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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Apart from the 5G development and digital centres, driven by the
national policies implemented in recent years, the urban rail transit
in the PRC experienced significant development. Transportation
is a fundamental, leading and strategic industry in the national
economy, and also an important component of a modern
economic system. The Draft Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan
and the Long-Range Objectives Through the Year 2035 ({+H &
HEFM—Z-—RFREHEMEEZR)) specifically stated that
the operating mileage of urban rail transit in the PRC will increase
by 3,000 kilometers during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period,
and it is expected that the cumulative passenger throughput will
exceed 100 billion person-times. In 2021, 35 urban rail transit
routes were newly added in the PRC with an additional operating
mileage of 1,168 kilometers, up by approximately 15% over
2020, reflecting the importance placed on the development
of urban rail transit by the Chinese government. In addition, in
terms of urban wastewater treatment, with a number of national
policies regarding wastewater treatment introduced in 2021,
wastewater utilisation as a resource was promoted while the
annual wastewater treatment volume and investment in industrial
wastewater treatment increased. In particular, the Plan for Urban
Sewage Treatment and Recycling Development for the 14th
Five-Year Plan ([T | 3885 7K B2 18 K B R{b A1 F 2 R AR
£0)) expressly stipulated that the direct discharge of domestic
sewage and the lack of collection and treatment facilities shall
be substantially eliminated for urban built-up areas, and at least
70% of domestic sewage shall be collected in a centralised
manner for all cities by 2025 so as to satisfy the needs for social
development. The Group has been committing to providing
diversified services and customised solutions for various
infrastructure construction and municipal construction projects,
including intelligent power solutions to buildings, rail transit,
wastewater treatment and different types of transportation
hub projects. As the government continued to accelerate the
investment in the construction of infrastructures such as urban
rail transit and urban wastewater treatment, the Group’s business
development will benefit from such growth during the year.

During the year, the Group ranked top in terms of market share
in the high-end markets and developed stable and long-term
relationship with long-term customers, including a number of
Top 500 companies in the world and large-scale international
enterprises both at home and abroad. Adhering to the philosophy
of providing reliable quality services and products as always,
the Group has been customising intelligent, energy conserving
and highly efficient system solutions based on customer needs,
and offered long-term maintenance and consultancy services
and relevant products, which were widely recognized by the
market. Meanwhile, the continuous cooperation with a number
of domestic leading companies in the communication and data
centre operation sectors enabled the Group to garner a well-
established presence and gain sound brand reputation in the
industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continued)
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Regarding overseas market, with the ongoing Pandemic
remained out of control overseas and the implementation of a
series of restriction policies by various overseas countries, the
Group’s overseas infrastructure projects under construction
or planning progressed unsatisfactorily. This posed a huge
challenge to the Group in the bidding and implementation of
overseas projects during the year. Nonetheless, in the face of
challenges, the Group’s subsidiary in Spain actively adjusted its
operation strategies and continued to provide high-end power
distribution products and services for customers in Europe and
other overseas countries, contributing a stable income stream to
the Group.

During the year, the Group’s vision was to “provide high-end
customised intelligent and energy-saving power management
solutions for customers from different industries”. Leveraging its
leading technological advantages in the field of power-related
cloud data platforms, the Group continued to carry out research
and innovation while increasing its investments to optimize
“Cloud+” services and full-cycle offerings of the Group, including
its operational efficiency and operating system, on an ongoing
basis, with a view to steering forward the development of
intelligent power management.

PROSPECT

Looking back at 2021, the global economy remained seriously
affected by the Pandemic took place in 2020. The influences of
increased energy prices and disruption in supply have resulted in
a rising and widespread inflation, which was beyond expectation,
particularly in many emerging markets and developing
economies. As stated in the World Economic Outlook (i FR4E
EREWHE)) published by the International Monetary Fund (the
“IMF”), the global economic performance in 2022 will be weaker
than the preliminary expectation due to the emergence of the
Omicron variant and the subsequent market volatility. Meanwhile,
the surging number of COVID-19 cases, coupled with the rising
inflation and energy prices resulting from global geopolitical
conflicts and emergence of wars, have exerted pressure on
the expected economic growth worldwide. Facing various
macroeconomic uncertainties, the Group will follow the general
trend of digital economy and 5G development by leveraging its
leading technological advantages in the field of intelligent power
management data platforms, at the same time keeping abreast
of the favourable national policies on urban rail transit and other
infrastructures to develop long-term core competitiveness of
products, aiming to improve its profitability continuously with the
sales business returning to growth. The Group is confident about
the outstanding performance throughout 2022.
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The year of 2021 marked the first year of the “14th Five-Year
Plan” and the digital economy was included in the “14th Five-
Year Plan” as a single chapter. Data centre is the basic facility
among digital economic infrastructures, which the government
has paid great attention to when formulating policies over the
past year. In 2022, the data centre industry will continue to
be supported by national policies, and the exponential growth
of demand for data driven by the COVID-19 Pandemic and
the developing IT infrastructures will help us better seize the
development opportunities in the coming year. According to the
latest predictions of Gartner, Inc., the infrastructure expenditure
for data centres worldwide is expected to exceed US$200
billion in 2022, representing an increase of approximately 6%
compared with that of 2021. As stated in the IDC White Book
Data Age 2025, total global data will increase from 33ZB in 2018
to 175ZB in 2025. With the support of government policies, the
data centre industry is embracing a new development trend
and domestic data volume will increase sharply at a compound
growth rate of over 30% in the upcoming seven years. China
is projected to possess the largest data volume in 2025 as
compared with Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Asia-Pacific
and the United States. In 2021, the National Development
and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China
(“NDRC”) specified that the provincial and regional power grid,
special inter-provincial and inter-regional construction projects,
incremental distribution network mechanism should be further
optimized during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. Based on
modern communication and Internet technology, the Group
will develop one-stop intelligent power integrated management
solutions for products and services including hardware integrated
systems, customised operating systems and software and sales
of electricity systems, as well as online and offline operation and
maintenance management through its own “Cloud Smart” big
data platform, which enable customers to achieve intelligent
power distribution and power consumption to enhance energy
efficiency management capability. Hence, with the flourishing
development of data centre industry, the development potential
of the Group’s services and products is huge.
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In recent years, with the breakneck growth of Chinese economy
accompanied by rapid urbanization, the urban rail transit
industry in the PRC also withessed a booming growth, while
length of operating routes, passenger throughput and length of
routes under construction all hit record highs. During the “14th
Five-Year Plan” period, China will add 3,000 km of rail transit
operating mileage. It is expected that the cumulative passenger
throughput will surpass 100 billion person-times. In last June, the
NDRC and the Ministry of Housing and Urban-rural Development
of the People’s Republic of China launched the Plan for Urban
Sewage Treatment and Recycling Development for the 14th Five
Plan (< [+M 7] 5 KEE R ERIEFIAZERZE), which
stipulated that the direct discharge of domestic sewage and the
lack of collection and treatment facilities shall be substantially
eliminated for urban built-up areas, and at least 70% of domestic
sewage shall be collected in a centralised manner for all cities by
2025. Benefited from China’s putting in more resources into new
infrastructure and wastewater treatment, it is expected that such
resources can bring new opportunities to the Group in respect
of business development of various infrastructure-related sectors
such as rail transit and wastewater treatment.

Catalyzed by the combined effects of the increase in electricity
consumption, the development of new power system and the
pressure of economic downturn, coupled with the needs of
structural upgrade and allocation of power resources resulted
from the thriving power demand, investment in power grids
continued to grow. State Grid and Southern Grid both actively
pushed forward the development of new power systems. In
2022, State Grid expedited the development of a new power
system in a bid to promote the transformation and upgrade of
power grids towards the internet of energy. The total investment
in such development is targeted at RMB579.5 billion. In particular,
it is planned that the investment in power grids will amount to
RMB501.2 billion, which will set a new record for State Grid’s
investment in recent years. In respect of the “14th Five Year
Grid Development Plan” of Southern Grid, relevant investments
amounted to approximately RMB670 billion, representing a
growth rate of over 20% as compared to that of the “13th Five
Year Plan”. As indicated in the research published by China
International Capital Corporation Limited, there will be a structural
deviation that power grid investment will be mainly directed
towards the power distribution segment. During the “13th Five
Year Plan” period, total investment in distribution grids amounted
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to nearly RMB1.5 trillion, which represented a year-on-year
growth of 55% as compared to the “12th Five Year Plan” period
and accounted for 57% of the national power grid investment.
This new phase of power distribution grids in the PRC required
a more scientific power grid structure, reasonable standard of
equipment and a necessary level of digitalization, automation and
intelligence so as to enhance the capabilities to secure power
supply, respond to emergency and allocate resources. As such,
the proportion of distribution grid investment to the power grid
investment for the “14th Five Year Plan” period is expected to
rise above 60%, representing an increase in total investment
amounts of 11% as compared with that for the “13th Five Year
Plan” period. The annual average investment amount is expected
to reach RMB330 billion. Automation and intelligent development
will become the major focus of distribution grid investment during
the “14th Five Year Plan” period, which would bring full and long-
term benefits to the principal business of the Group, namely the
provision of intelligent power management system solutions.
In addition to having over 35 years of professional experience,
the Group is one of the few service providers in the industry
that offers one-stop intelligent power integrated management
solutions for various sectors, which has given it a first-mover
advantage in power grid market development and planning in the
future.

In 2021, the new energy vehicle industry in the PRC saw a
rapid growth. According to the data published by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the People’s Republic
of China, production and sales volumes both exceeded 3.5
million units, increased by 1.6 times year-on-year. Stepping into
2022, an accelerated growth of the new energy vehicle market
is expected, which will not only expedite the development of
charging and replacement infrastructure, but also hasten the
application of 5G information and communication technology.
With its abundant reserves in ancillary power products related to
new energy vehicles, the Group will grasp the potential market
opportunities for development and increasing its market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continued)
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With extensive project experience, Boer Power has continuously
devoted considerable efforts in exploring the intelligent
power distribution industry. Meanwhile, leveraging its leading
technology and business quality advantages in the industry,
coupled with its own big data platform “Cloud Smart”, it has
continuously attracted new and existing customers, resulting
in its increasingly growing business scale. Over the years, the
Group has maintained close cooperation with many Top 500
companies in the world and large-scale enterprises at home and
abroad, providing them with one-stop intelligent power integrated
management solutions. In the future, on the basis of its leading
technological advantages in the field of power-related cloud data
platform, the Group will flexibly adjust its operation strategies in
response to market changes and continue to devote persistent
efforts in innovation to explore more high-value customers.
Meanwhile, the Group will seize market opportunities to
increase its market share and secure more orders and business
opportunities.

Looking into 2022, in view of the complex and volatile political and
economic environment at home and abroad, coupled with the
unfavorable factors of the globally ravaging COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group will adhere to the solid and prudent operation strategy,
strictly review project risks and seize the opportunities presented
by the new infrastructure policies and market in aspects such as
data centres and rail transit. Through continuous improvement
and optimization of its own technologies, products and services,
the Group will strive to restore its growth momentum in sales. In
addition, through continuously strict internal control and refined
management, the Group will continue to optimize the gearing
structure, further enhance profitability, and strive to create more
value for the interests of shareholders.

BEENHEFHEEEESTE  BALEN
TEEEE - R RETERLNRMNRER
MEEZ  NMEBBERBEFAIEE] - R3
MERPNFESE ¥ REHRE L TEE
Ko ZER » AEFRR L F50058 1% K% H
RINKBI B ERBEREE - BHIEHE MR
BHBENGAEEBERAE - KK AEBB
AEMGE B ARLCERE B NEH
BFaERMEBELERMERER £ - TEEH
A% BRERELZSEBETP - RAE  KAEEE
MEMSHSE  RATHNE  IEEEZTE
P o

RE-—T-—F HEBRIMEMZENEOR
MEBERE - MEAHTRBE2HFERENT
NMEZRFE  AEEFEERSREZEBRNL
BB BRIEBEEE AR - UEBES O -
PERBEFNERZRRETEHE - BETH
RAMBLCE SN  ERERE - BHER
HEEDIEREE  WEBFKERBAE B
AMLER  BEBLEERGRER £ IR
FrEMEEN - NFRBRNEAIEEZEE

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021 —Z = —4 4

19



20

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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OPERATION AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year, the business of the Group can be divided into
the following two segments:

IEM Solutions

Based on modern communication and Internet technology
and relying on its “Cloud Smart” big data platform, the Group
provides its customers with one-stop intelligent electrical
integrated management solutions for the products and services
such as intelligent hardware integrated systems, customised
operating systems and software, intelligent power consumption
and energy efficiency management system, new energy power
generation and sales of electricity solutions, as well as online and
offline operation and maintenance management, thereby ensuring
safe, highly efficient and energy-saving power consumption of
customers and hence maximising the economic benefits of their
power consumption.

The revenue of IEM Solutions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 was RMB409.2 million (2020: RMB644.1
million), which accounted for 71.5% (2020: 78.9%) of the
Group’s total revenue for the year. The revenue of IEM Solutions
for the year ended 31 December 2021 decreased by 36.5% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. The decrease
was mainly caused by reduced sales orders from overseas
customers due to the outbreak of the Pandemic. The gross profit
of this business segment for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB148.5 million (2020: RMB192.0 million), representing a
decrease of 22.7% as compared to the corresponding period of
last year.

The gross profit margin of IEM Solutions increased from 29.8% in
2020 to 36.3% for the year. The increase was benefited from the
continuous upgrade of the Group’s products and technologies.

CSP Business

The Group also manufactures components and spare parts
for application on electrical distribution equipment or the basic
function units of the solutions and sells such components and
spare parts to its customers. Their functions can only be realised
through the system or connecting with other hardware.

According to the differences of applications, CSP Business can
be further classified into the below categories:

— Special CSP: the custom-made parts ordered by the
Group’s long-term customers; and

— Standard CSP: the general parts and components being
sold by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continued)
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The revenue of CSP Business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 was RMB163.4 million (2020: RMB172.6
million), which accounted for 28.5% (2020: 21.1%) of the Group’s
total revenue for the year. The decrease in sales of CSP Business
of 5.3% for the year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly
caused by reduced sales orders from overseas customers due to
the outbreak of the Pandemic. The gross profit of CSP Business
was RMB43.5 million (2020: RMB45.0 million), representing a
decrease of 3.3% as compared to that of 2020.

The gross profit margin of CSP Business segment increased
from 26.1% for 2020 to 26.6% for the year.

Other net income/loss

Other net income/loss mainly includes interest income from
financial institutions, refund of value added taxes (“VAT"),
government grants, gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and change in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group recorded other net loss of RMB5.1
million (2020: other net income of RMB8.4 million) for the year,
which was mainly attributable to a write-off of property, plant and
equipment of RMB9.2 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly staff costs,
transportation fees, travelling expenses and other miscellaneous
expenses. During the year ended 31 December 2021, selling and
distribution expenses were RMB71.5 million (2020: RMB79.5
million), representing a decrease of RMB8.0 million or 10.1%
as compared to that of 2020. The decrease in selling and
distribution expenses was mainly due to the decrease in revenue.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly comprised
of staff costs, office expenses, depreciation and amortisation
charges and other miscellaneous expenses. Administrative and
other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB80.3 million (2020: RMB142.4 million),
representing a decrease of RMB62.1 million or 43.6% as
compared to that of 2020. Decrease in administrative and other
operating expenses was mainly due to the implementation of cost
control measures by the Group and there were no impairment
losses on contract costs during the year.

HE_Z-_-—F+-A=+—HILFE K&
B EEHEBNBRABARE1634EET
—E-TF ARBIT26BET)  EAEE
FRBUA285%(ZE_FF : 21.1%) - HE
—E-—F+-_A=+—HBUIEFE  THEEZ
HEER I EREERS5.3%MMIE - TE2RIE
BEEBEINEPIHERTER DR - %%
DESEMAARKLSSHETL( T -TF :

ARBA505ETL) RS _ZTF TE3.3% °

THREHEBDBHENER=
26.1% FAZEFH26.6% °

Hitg A 1838

Hip A/ BEFEEIEBERESREED
MEBWA -~ RERER BAEMEBE - HEY
¥ BB LAREBEE MR AFERABRENS
RMEERY FARALAKERSEMEBERFEA
RE¥sABET(ZT-FF : AMRAFEA
R¥84BET)  TEANMEDE - BER
REBARKEICEBITAAE -

HER D HEX
HERSPHASITZBREEIAA EHE
A ZREREMBERY #HEZT-—F
+TZA=Z+—HLEFE HERIERAIAA

RET15BEBL(ZEFF : ARK7958
Bn) BR-_ZE-ZTFRILARKSOEE LK
10.1% ° SHERDHERAZ TR EZHRIEE
WA FEFTER ©

THRHEMEERX
THEMEMEERYETERIEETHA - #A
B MEREHAILEMBERY - #E
—E-—F+-_A=+—HLFE  THEEE
Mg ERY AARKSSEET(ZE-ZTF :
ARE1424B58L) REZZZZFRIAR
#6218 &0 543.6% © 1T K H b & & F SR
DI EHRAREBRERE KA 1 5
FRRBEESONADFBEBBY -

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021 —& — —F 4

21



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and recorded a one-
off gain of RMB94.0 million during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil). Details of the disposal of subsidiaries have been
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Finance costs

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s finance
costs were RMB27.4 million (2020: RMB36.0 million). Finance
costs include interest on borrowings mainly denominated in RMB
and finance charges on lease liabilities. The decrease in finance
costs was mainly due to the decrease in borrowings and lease
liabilities.

Income tax expense

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s income
tax expense was RMB84.2 million (2020: RMB33.5 million).
The income tax expense for the year was mainly attributable
to the reversal of deferred tax assets of RMB82.7 million. Such
reversal was mainly due to certain unused tax credits arising from
impairment loss of trade receivables were expired during the
year.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB12.5
million (2020: RMB9.3 million). The increase in profit was mainly
due to a one-off gain on disposal of certain subsidiaries of
RMB94.0 million recorded by the Group during the year, and
partially offset by the reversal of deferred tax assets of RMB82.7
million, property, plant and equipment written off of RMB9.2
million and provision of impairment losses for trade and other
receivables of RMB5.0 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets of the Group were
RMB1,331.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB1,478.1 million)
and the total liabilities were RMB1,063.7 million (31 December
2020: RMB1,280.0 million). As at 31 December 2021, the
total equity of the Group amounted to RMB267.4 million (31
December 2020: RMB198.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continved)
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The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, amounts due to related
parties and borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, the cash
and cash equivalents, net current assets and total assets less
current liabilities were RMB77.7 million (31 December 2020:
RMB39.9 million), RMB69.4 million (31 December 2020:
RMB155.8 million) and RMB434.1 million (31 December 2020:
RMB697.3 million) respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had borrowings amounting to RMB508.1 million (31
December 2020: RMB583.6 million). Borrowings were repayable
within five years with effective interest rates ranging from 1.5%
10 4.65% per annum (31 December 2020: range from 1.5% to
10.8% per annum). Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
are denominated mainly in RMB. The Group’s gearing ratio,
which was expressed as a ratio of total borrowings over total
equity, was 190.0% as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 294.6%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to
decrease in total borrowing and increase in total equity.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, certain borrowings were secured by
buildings of RMB32.7 million (31 December 2020: RMB78.3
million), prepaid leasehold land of RMB24.0 million (31 December
2020: RMB29.4 million) and pledged deposits of RMB150.0
million (31 December 2020: RMB120.0 million).

ASSETS/LIABILITIES TURNOVER RATIO

The average inventory turnover days increased by 55 days from
84 days for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 139 days for
the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to the decrease
in cost of sales and increase in inventories. The average trade
receivables turnover days increased by 121 days from 229
days for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 350 days for the
year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to the decrease in
revenue. The average trade payables turnover days increased by
138 days from 234 days for the year ended 31 December 2020
to 372 days for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due
to increasing use of bills payable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the
Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, which is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving RMB must take place through the PRC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions
are the rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
that are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency
risk as it had minimal export sales and the impact of foreign
currency risk on the Group’s total sales is minimal.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31
December 2021 are as follows:

Location

i B

Shenlong Road, Longhu Industrial Park,
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Economic Development Zone, Huaibei City, Anhui Province, the PRC
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Jiaxing Sweater Raw Materials Trading Market, Honghe Town,
Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
REMNIERETASMNERSEREECREBHRZSH TS

Yiwu International Commodity City, Zhangian Road,
Xianghe Town, Quanjiao County, Anhui Province, the PRC
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Health East Street, Weifang City, Shandong Province, the PRC
PRI RE S T IERRE

Tianyu Yipin, Wulihe Road, Chengnan District,
Mengcheng County, Anhui Province, the PRC
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Save as disclosed above, the section headed Connected
Transactions and note 17 to the financial statements, the Group
had no significant investment held or material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continved)
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as of 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 703 (31 December 2020: 776) employees as at
31 December 2021. The total staff costs for the year ended 31
December 2021 were RMB83.1 million (2020: RMB89.6 million).
The remuneration policy was in line with the current legislation in
the relevant jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of
the staff and the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
their contribution and support are valued at all times. The
Group provides competitive remuneration packages and share
award scheme to attract and retain employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to new levels of success. The Group regularly
reviews compensation and benefit policies according to industry
benchmark, financial results as well as the individual performance
of employees. Furthermore, the Group places great emphasis on
the training and development of employees and regards excellent
employees as a key factor in its competitiveness.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
1. Market risks

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such as
interest rate risk, credit risk (including the risk to be borne by
the Group in the event of default of payment by customers),
liquidity risk, etc. The details are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.

2. Commercial risks

The Group is facing various competition by multinational
companies in the same industry, and also finds that an
increasing number of domestic competitors enter the high-
end markets. To maintain the Group’s competitiveness,
the management uses cost leadership strategy as well
as diversifying its business strategies to tackle other
competitors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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3. Operational risks

The Group’s operations require a certain number of
government approvals and are subject to a broad range of
laws and regulations governing various matters. In particular,
the continuance of the Group’s operations depends upon
compliance with applicable environmental, health and safety
and other regulations. The Group has already employed
external legal consultant and business adviser and will ensure
timely approvals by relevant government departments.

4. Loss of key individuals or the inability to attract
and retain talents

Lack of appropriately skilled and experienced human
resource could result in a delay in achieving the Group’s
strategic goals. The risk of the loss of key personnel is
mitigated by regular reviews of recruitment and retention
practices, remuneration packages, share award scheme and
succession planning within the management team.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout
its business operations. As a responsible corporation, the Group
strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully
managing our energy consumption and water usage level,
including the establishment of self-distributed photovoltaic power
plants and other initiatives.

The Group promotes environmental protection by raising the
employees’ awareness of resources saving and efficient use
of energy. In recent years, the Group has implemented several
policies to encourage employees for saving energy. All these
policies aim at reducing resources consumption and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the commercial
goals of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group values mutually beneficial long standing relationships
with its suppliers and customers. The Group aims at delivering
high quality products and solutions to its customers and
developing on mutual trust among its suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND. ANALYSIS (continved)

EEE WM& DT

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. The business model of the Group with regards to the
business is to maintain and strengthen on strong relationships
within our client base. The Group’s mission is to provide the
finest products and solutions to the customers. The Group is
constantly looking at ways to improve customer relations through
enhanced services. Through the above approaches, the Group
hopes to increase the volume of business from the existing
customers and the reach for new potential clients.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board places emphasis on the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
External legal advisers are engaged to ensure transactions and
businesses performed by the Group are within the applicable law
framework. Updates on applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and operation
units from time to time. The Group continues to commit to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations such as the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and other applicable laws and
regulations. Based on information available, the Directors take
the view that during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEREREHEEE

The Directors’ updated information is set out below. Upon
specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations from
Directors, save as otherwise set out in this report, there is
no change in the information of the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the
Company’s last published annual report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
QIAN Yixiang

QIAN Yixiang, aged 48, is an Executive Director, the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Qian Yixiang was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 12 February 2010 and as a member of
the Company’s Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee on 30 September 2010. Mr. Qian Yixiang is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qian Yixiang
is mainly responsible for overseeing the factory operations in
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Qian Yixiang joined Wuxi
Boer Power Instrumentation Company Ltd. (“Wuxi Boer”), the
predecessor entity of the Group, in July 1995 and became the
General Manager of Wuxi Boer in January 1998. Since he first
joined Wuxi Boer in July 1995, Mr. Qian Yixiang has acquired
knowledge and experience about the electrical distribution
systems and the electrical distribution equipment industry. Mr.
Qian Yixiang graduated from Jiangnan University with a Diploma
in Business Management in 1995. Mr. Qian Yixiang is the
husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr. Qian Zhongming.

JIA Lingxia

JIA Lingxia (“Ms. Jia”), aged 48, is an Executive Director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Ms. Jia was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 12 February 2010
and as a member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee on 30 September 2010. Ms. Jia is
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms.
Jia is mainly responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing
operation of the Group. Ms. Jia joined Wuxi Boer in August
1995 and became the Deputy General Manager of Wuxi Boer
in January 1997. From February 1995 to August 1995, Ms. Jia
worked at Wuxi Special Ventilation Machine Factory, currently
known as Wuxi Xishan Special Ventilation Machine Factory,
as the head of the accounts department. Since Ms. Jia joined
Wuxi Boer in August 1995, she has acquired knowledge and
experience about the electrical distribution systems and the
electrical distribution equipment industry. Ms. Jia graduated from
Jiangnan University with a Diploma in Business Management in
1995. Ms. Jia is the wife of Mr. Qian Yixiang and the daughter-in-
law of Mr. Qian Zhongming.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (confinved)
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ZHA Saibin

ZHA Saibin (“Mr. Zha”), aged 55, is an Executive Director and
a Vice President of the Company responsible for new products
development. Mr. Zha was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 12 February 2010. Mr. Zha is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zha is mainly
responsible for the product development of the Group. Mr.
Zha joined Wuxi Boer in June 2000 and became the Assistant
Manager and the head of research and development department
of Wuxi Boer in 20083. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zha worked
at Wuxi City Apparatus Factory from July 1990 to May 2000 and
was later appointed as the head of research and development
and the Deputy General Manager in January 1996 and November
1997, respectively. Since joining Wuxi Boer in June 2000, Mr.
Zha has acquired knowledge and experience about the electrical
distribution systems and the electrical distribution equipment
industry. Mr. Zha received a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in
1990 from Hefei University of Technology.

QIAN Zhongming

QIAN Zhongming, aged 75, is an Executive Director and a Vice
President of the Company responsible for providing advice to
the Board. Mr. Qian Zhongming was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 12 February 2010. As a founding
member of Wuxi Boer, Mr. Qian Zhongming acquired knowledge
and experience about the electrical distribution systems and the
electrical distribution equipment industry during the last 20 years.
Mr. Qian Zhongming graduated from Luoshe Senior High School
in 1966. Mr. Qian Zhongming is the father of Mr. Qian Yixiang
and the father-in-law of Ms. Jia.

YU Wai Ming

YU Wai Ming (“Mr. Yu”), aged 37, is an Executive Director of
the Company responsible for the formulation of the strategic
development plans and management policy of the Group and the
management of the daily operations of the Group. Mr. Yu was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 January
2021. Mr. Yu was also appointed by Mr. Zha as his alternate
Director with effect from 8 January 2021. Mr. Yu is currently an
independent non-executive director of Billion Industrial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2299).

Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 15 years of experience in
professional accounting and corporate advisory services. Mr.
Yu received a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
(Accounting) from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2006.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (confinued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
TANG Jianrong

TANG Jianrong (“Mr. Tang”), aged 58, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 30 September 2010 and
was appointed as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 30
September 2010. Mr. Tang is currently a professor in the School
of Business at Jiangnan University. Although the Group has
established a long-term research relationship with Jiangnan
University, Mr. Tang has never been involved in any of the
research and development programmes undertaken by Jiangnan
University for the Group. Neither has Mr. Tang been involved
in the negotiation of any cooperation agreements. Mr. Tang
currently does not receive and has not in the past ever received
any personal benefit from the cooperation relationship between
the Group and Jiangnan University. Mr. Tang currently is not
personally interested in and was not in the past ever personally
interested in such cooperation relationship. He is currently
an independent director of Wuxi DK Electronic Materials Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 300842), which is listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tang received a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Hebei
Geology College, currently known as Shijiazhuang University
of Economics, in 1987. He then received a master’s degree in
Economics from Zhongnan University of Economics in 1990. He
received a Doctoral degree in Science from Nanjing University in
2009.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (confinved)
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QU Weimin

QU Weimin (“Mr. Qu”), aged 53, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 August 2016 and was
appointed as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 1
August 2016. Mr. Qu serves as the Project Director of Beijing
Zhongqging Zhihui New Energy Technology Co., Ltd since
November 2020. From November 2019 to October 2020,
Mr. Qu served as the Equipment Director of Beijing Zhizhong
Rail Transportation Technology Co, Ltd. From January 2019
to October 2019, Mr. Qu was the Chief Engineer of Beijing
Supergreen Technologies Co., Ltd., responsible for the
operation of the company and focusing on the application
of fiberglass spray-on thermal insulation on ships of Chinese
navy. Mr. Qu served as the Chief Representative of Franklin
Fueling Systems Inc., the Beijing Office from January 2008 to
December 2008. From August 2005 to December 2006, Mr.
Qu served as the Deputy General Manager of Wuxi Electrical
Instrument & Power System Factory (currently known as “Wuxi
Boer Power Instrumentation Company Ltd.”). Prior to that, Mr.
Qu worked as the Product Manager of Veeder-Root Petroleum
Equipment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. between May 2004 and July
2005. For the period from July 1996 to May 2004, Mr. Qu
worked with Schneider Electric (China) Investment Co., Ltd
where he served various positions including Product Marketing
& Strategic Planning Manager of Medium Voltage Activity,
Activity & Franchise Operation Manager of Medium Voltage
Primary Distribution Activity, DV2 Vacuum Circuit Breaker Project
Manager and Franchise Operation Manager of Low Voltage
Distribution Activity. Mr. Qu has over 28 years’ experience in the
power industry.

Mr. Qu obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from the City University of Seattle in 2003 and a bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from Tsinghua University in 1990.
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LAI Wai Leuk

LAl Wai Leuk (“Mr. Lai”), aged 45, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 2 July 2020 and
was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 2 July 2010. From May 2000 to January 2004,
Mr. Lai worked at Fung, Yu & Co., Certified Public Accountants.
He also served successively as accountant, assistant manager
and manager of KPMG from January 2004 to October 2009.
Mr. Lai was transferred to KPMG Advisory (China) Limited from
November 2009 to May 2012 and was a senior manager at
the time of leaving. He also served as chief financial officer of
Aujet Industry Limited from May 2012 to August 2013. Mr. Lai
is the chief financial officer, company secretary and one of the
authorised representatives of Billion Industrial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2299) from October 2013 to July 2021. Mr. Lai is
currently an independent non-executive director of Universal
Star (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2346). He has more than
20 years of experience in auditing and accounting. Mr. Lai is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a member of CPA Australia and an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. Lai received his bachelor’'s degree of Commerce major in
Accountancy from the University of Wollongong in Australia
in December 1999 and obtained the master of Corporate
Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
September 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WU Jianping

WU Jianping (“Mr. Wu Jianping”), aged 42, is the Vice
President of the Group, in charge of domestic sales business
management. Mr. Wu Jianping joined the Group in July 2002
and worked in the marketing department of Boer (Wuxi) Power
System Co., Ltd. (“Boer Wuxi”) from July 2002 to December
2004, he was appointed as the industry manager of Boer Wuxi
sales department in January 2005, and was appointed as the
Southeastern regional manager of Boer Wuxi sales department
in January 2006. Mr. Wu Jianping was appointed as the Group’s
Sales Director for East China region in January 2011 and was
appointed as the Group’s Sales Director for Central China region
in January 2018. Mr Wu Jianping was appointed as the Vice
President of the Group in September 2020. Since he joined the
Group in 2002, Mr. Wu Jianping has gained extensive working
experience in marketing and sales business in the industry. Mr.
Wu Jianping graduated from the School of Management of China
University of Mining and Technology in July 2002.
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AN Di

AN Di (“Mr. An”), aged 49, is the Vice President of the Group,
in charge of human resources, legal and IT departments. Mr. An
joined the Group in March 2005 and was appointed as Assistant
to General Manager and the Head of Internal Compliance of
Boer Wuxi in November 2006, as factory Operation Manager
of Boer Wuxi and as the Human Resources Director of the
Group in October 2012. Mr. An was re-designated as Human
Resources and Legal Director of the Group in July 2015 and
was appointed as the Vice President of the Group in September
2020. Since he joined the Group in March 2005, Mr. An has
gained experience in overlooking the implementation of internal
compliance, human resources and legal matters. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. An had been an Assistant to the Factory Director
of Tianshui Cheungcheng General Electric Apparatus Factory.
Mr. An graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University with a diploma
in Jurisprudence in 2006.

WU Chang

WU Chang (“Mr. Wu”), aged 51, is the Vice President of
the Group, in charge of business and technology, project
management and factory operation. Mr. Wu Chang is mainly
responsible for project technical plan development, business
quotations, industrial design of product technology, project
execution and factory management etc. Mr. Wu Chang joined
Wuxi City Instrumentation System Works in July 1995. He was
appointed as Project Manager of Boer Wuxi in March 2003 and
as Quality Control department’s Manager of Boer Power in June
2008. In September 2012, Mr. Wu Chang was promoted to the
Customer Center Director of the Group. He was re-designated
as the Research and Development Director of the Research
and Development Department in June 2015 and was then re-
designated as the Business and Technology Director in March
2017. Mr. Wu Chang was appointed as the Vice President of the
Group in January 2021. Mr. Wu Chang graduated from Suzhou
Sericulture College in 1993.
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MA Xiaobin

MA Xiaobin (“Mr. Ma”), aged 43, is the Vice President of the
Group, in charge of overseas business support and material
cost control. Mr. Ma jointed the Group in March 2013 as the
operation manager of Boer (Yixing) Power System Co., Ltd. He
was appointed as the R&D Director of the Group’s R&D center
in 2015, and was appointed as the Group’s Overseas Supply
Chain Director in September 2019. Mr. Ma was appointed as
the Group’s Vice President of Cost in February 2021. Since
joining the Group, he has gained experience in factory operation,
R&D execution, supply chain management and cost control.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ma was the Factory Manager of
Nantong Tianbo Electronics Co., Ltd. Mr. Ma was the Technical
Director of Jiangsu Wellman Group from 2009 to 2010, and he
was the Technical Manager of Jiangsu Hima Electromechanical
Engineering Co., Ltd. Before June 2009. Mr. Ma graduated from
Jiangsu University in June 2001 with a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering.

HE Fuye

HE Fuye (“Mr. He"), aged 54, is the Vice President of the Group,
in charge of the marketing business and the sales business
in the Northern region. Mr. He joined the Group in February
2010 and served as the Sales Director of components in the
Northern Region of Boer Wuxi from February 2010 to February
2013, he was appointed as Sales Director of Boer Wuxi's
power grid business in March 2013, and was appointed as the
Sales Director of the Northern region in July 2016. Mr. He was
appointed as the Vice President of the Group in September
2021. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. He worked in Schneider
Electric (China) from September 1997 to February 2010, where
he served as the National Distributor Pipeline Director. Before July
1994, he worked in Panzhihua Iron and Steel (Group) Company.
Since 1997, Mr. Ho Has gained extensive working experience in
marketing and sales business in the industry. Mr. He graduated
from the University of Electronic Science and Technology of
China in April 1997 with a master’s degree.
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LI Xianli

LI Xianli (“Mr. Li"), aged 48, is the Long-term Customers
Markets Director of the Group. Mr. Li is mainly responsible for the
development of long-term customers markets of the Group and
sales work of Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Ltd.
Mr. Li joined Boer Power in April 2011 as the Operation Director.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the Purchasing Engineer
and Purchasing Supervisor of York (Wuxi) Air-conditioner
Refrigeration Equipment Co., Ltd. from February 1997 to
November 2004. Mr. Li worked as the Operating Manager
and General Manager of Compair Global Purchasing Center
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from December 2004 to March 2011. Mr. Li
received a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1997 from Nanjing
Agricultural University and then a master’s degree in Business
Administration in 2006 from Fudan University.

SHEN Weizu

SHEN Weizu (“Mr. Shen”), aged 49, is the Operation Manager
of Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Limited. Mr. Shen
joined Boer Wuxi in January 1993 and was appointed as the
Manufacturing Supervisor and Quality Supervisor of Boer Wuxi
in April 1999 and July 2005 respectively. Subsequently he
worked as the Operation Manager of Yixing Boai Automation
Complete Sets of Equipment Co., Ltd. and then Boer Wuxi
between the period from September 2010 and September 2013.
In October 2013, Mr. Shen was promoted to Supply Chain
Management Director of the Group. Mr. Shen was re-designated
as Engineering Director of the Engineering Department in
June 2015 and was appointed as Operation Manager of Wukxi
Tezhing Electrical Capacitor Co., Limited in April 2017. Mr. Shen
graduated from Jiangsu Provincial Huaiyang Electronic Industrial
College in 1993.

CHAN Shiu Pui

Chan Shiu Pui (“Mr. Chan”), aged 42, is the Financial Controller
and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan is mainly
responsible for the financial management, corporate financing
and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chan joined the Group
as the Financial Controller and Company Secretary in October
2019. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan worked for one of
the Big 4 international accounting firms and various companies.
He has more than 17 years of experience in auditing and
financial management. Mr. Chan graduated from the University
of Plymouth in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree
majoring in Business Administration in 2002. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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LU Jiang

LU Jiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 41, is the Investor Relations Manager
of the Group. Mr. Lu joined Boer Power in May 2015. He has
extensive experience in the area of investor relations. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Lu worked as the News and Public
Affairs Officer of the British Embassy in China, the Corporate
Development and Investor Relations Manager of Gome Electrical
Appliances Holding Limited (stock code: 493) and the Investor
Relations Manager of PW Medtech Group Limited (stock code:
1358). Mr. Lu received a master’s degree in Computer Science
from University of Hertfordshire in 2003.

ZHANG Xiaochen

ZHANG Xiaochen (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 36, is the Internal Audit
Director of the Group. Mr. Zhang is mainly responsible for the
formulation and optimisation of the Company’s internal control
process and execution standard according to the needs of its
business development; the execution of the internal control of
the Company to help various departments, subsidiaries and
holding companies to carry out on-site supervision over the
relevant business processes and operating practices to reduce
management risk. Mr. Zhang joined Boer Wuxi in September
2015 as the Financial Internal Control Manager and was
appointed as the Internal Audit Manager in December 2015. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked as the Auditor of the
Audit Department of Csc & Associados Sociedade De Auditores
in Macau from September 2008 to October 2010. From October
2010 to October 2012, Mr. Zhang worked as the Senior Auditor
of Lehman Brown International Accountants. From October 2012
to September 2015, Mr. Zhang worked as the Senior Auditor of
the Internal Audit Office of Daikin (CHINA) Investment Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Macau University of Science and
Technology in 2008 with a bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIWE

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has applied the principles of good corporate
governance and has complied with the code provisions stipulated
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2021, except for the
deviations from the code provision A.2.1.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code for
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries
by the Company to all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2021 regarding the
directors’ securities transactions. The Company has also ensured
compliance of its employees who are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities in respect
of their dealings with the Company’s securities.

The following sections set out how the principles in the Code
have been complied with by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised eight Directors
consisting of five Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.

Function

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and affairs with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value.
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The Board is also responsible for performing corporate
governance duties including the developing, reviewing and
monitoring of the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on the compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and the
compliance manual applicable to the Company’s employees and
the Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosing in the corporate
governance report of the annual report of the Company.

In addition, the Board is also responsible for reviewing the
risk management system, discussing with the management
to ensure the effectiveness of the risk management system,
considering major investigation findings on risk management
matters and management’s response to these findings, reviewing
arrangements by which employees and those who deal with the
Company can raise the concerns about possible improprieties
in risk management related to the Company, and ensuring
appropriate follow-up actions have been taken.

The Board has engaged an external independent consultant to
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems annually which covered certain material
controls, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. The assessment
report was reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board to
ensure the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems have been worked effectively.

The daily operations, business strategies and administration of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Directors and the
management with the divisional heads responsible for different
aspects of the business. When the Board delegates different
aspects of its management and administrative functions to the
senior management, it gives clear directions in relation to the
scope of powers of the senior management. Although the Board
is not involved in the Group’s day-to-day operations, it does have
a formal schedule of matters reserved for its own decision, as
defined in its terms of reference.
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Board meetings

held by the Board. The attendance record of each Director is set

out below:

Name of Board members
EEENERR

Executive Directors

Mr. Qian Yixiang® (Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer)

Ms. Jia Lingxia® (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Zha Saibini

Mr. Qian Zhongming®

Mr. Yu Wai Ming®

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Jianrong

Mr. Qu Weimin

Mr. Lai Wai Leuk

Alternate Director
Mr. Yu Wai Ming(
(Alternate Director to Mr. Zha Saibin)

Notes:

ExeeR
During the year ended 31 December 2021, seven meetings were HZE_T_-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFERN - &

FERTTLERER  REFHESEABR

BymT

BITEF

RO A0
(ZEFRITIEARZL)

BEEBEUT(EEZER)

BEWRLED

EIMAREL

RIESTED

BUHNTEF
KL
EHWRELE
RERS L

BErEF
RESRTAED
(BB LR ETEE)

() Mr. Qian Yixiang is the husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr. 0]

Qian Zhongming.

(i) Mr. Yu Wai Ming was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from (ii)

8 January 2021.

(i)  Mr. Zha Saibin appointed Mr. Yu Wai Ming as his alternate Director and (i)
authorise Mr. Yu Wai Ming to attend Board meetings during his absence.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally — 22

BRI o

given for other Board meetings.

The Directors would receive relevant documents from the
Company Secretary in a timely manner to enable the Directors
to be informed of the decisions of those matters discussed in
the Board meetings. The Company Secretary would ensure the
procedures of the Board meetings are observed and provide the
Board with opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with
the procedures of the Board meetings. Board minutes prepared

and kept by the Company Secretary are sent to the Directors for
records and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on

reasonable notice by any Director.

THES

Number of Number of
attendance meetings
R # BRRE

5 7

5 7

3 7

3 7

7 7

5 7

5 7

6 7

4 7
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had
complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. There
were three Independent Non-executive Directors, representing
one-third of the Board. Among the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, one of them has the appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance and risk. The
Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors annual written confirmations of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Qian
Yixiang is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Such deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code
is deemed appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient
to have one single person as the Chairman of the Company as
well as to discharge the executive functions of a Chief Executive
Officer, and it provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership in the development and execution of its long-term
business strategies. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations
of the Board which comprises highly experienced individuals.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board comprised
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of them possess
adequate independence and therefore the Board considers
that the Company has achieved balance and provided sufficient
protection of its interests. The Board will continue to review and
consider splitting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into
account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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Appointment, re-election and removal

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an additional Director to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”), one third of the Directors for the time being will
retire from office by rotation. Under code provision A.4.1 of the
Code, all the Non-executive Directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, each of Mr.
Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin and Mr. Lai Wai Leuk has been
appointed for a specific term of three years from their respective
appointments on (i) 30 September 2010 for Mr. Tang Jianrong,
(i) 1 August 2016 for Mr. Qu Weimin and (i) 2 July 2020 for Mr.
Lai Wai Leuk. Mr. Tang Jianrong had retired from his office and
been re-elected as Independent Non-executive Directors at the
2018 AGM. Mr. Qu Weimin had retired from his office and been
re-elected as an Independent Non-executive Director at the 2019
AGM. Mr. Lai Wai Leuk had retired from his office and been re-
elected as Independent Non-executive Directors at the 2020
AGM. Under code provision A.4.2 of the Code, every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three year. Ms. Jia
Lingxia and Mr. Zha Saibin, the Executive Directors, will retire
from their office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and shall
be eligible to offer themselves for re-election pursuant to articles
108 and 109 of the Articles. Under code provision A.4.3, any
further appointment of Independent Non-executive Director who
served more than nine (9) years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. Mr. Tang Jiangrong,
an Independent Non-executive Director, has served the Board
for more than nine (9) years and is due to retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM. During the tenure of office, Mr. Tang
Jiangrong had performed his duties as an Independent Non-
executive Director to the satisfaction of the Board. After taking
into account all the factors for assessing his independence as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considering his annual
confirmation of independence to the Company, the Board is of
the opinion that Mr. Tang Jiangrong maintains his independence
notwithstanding the length of his service and believes that
his valuable knowledge and experience continue to generate
significant contribution to the Board, the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. A separate ordinary resolution will be
proposed for his re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the
Company before the expiration of his term of office and the
Company may by ordinary resolution appoint another Director
in his place. Unless otherwise determined by the Company in
general meeting, the number of Directors shall not be less than
two.

Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. All Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Group continuously updates
the Directors with circulars and guidance notes on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Group
also provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge his duties.

A summary of the trainings received by the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Name of Board members

EEgRELR

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang® RS AED
Ms. Jia Lingxia® FABEL L0
Mr. Zha Saibin BEWSRE
Mr. Qian Zhongming® SRR S A0
Mr. Yu Wai Ming® ENES - ietanl
Independent Non-executive Directors HUIFNTEE
Mr. Tang Jianrong ERER L.
Mr. Qu Weimin BERELE
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RIZEE L

Notes:

() Mr. Qian Yixiang is the husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr.
Qian Zhongming.

(i) Mr. Yu Wai Ming was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from
8 January 2021.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 30 September 2010 in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules and had renewed the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code which
was adopted by the Board on 15 December 2015. As at 31
December 2021, the Audit Committee had three members
comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, Mr. Tang Jianrong and Mr. Qu Weimin. Mr. Lai
Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, to review the Company’s annual report and
interim reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board, as well as to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors and assessing their independence and performance.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and reports
and discussed with the external auditors on any significant or
unusual items before submitting such reports to the Board,
reviewed the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, as well as reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and associated procedures. The Audit Committee also
discussed the risk management system of the Company with the
management. In addition, the members of the Audit Committee
held a meeting with the management and the independent
professional accounting firm appointed by the Company relating
to the internal control review matters during the year ended 31
December 2021. The Audit Committee also actively participated
in the internal control review matters to improve and strengthen
the internal control system of the Company, where necessary.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings
were held by the Audit Committee. No alternate Director was
authorised to attend such meetings and the attendance record of
each Committee member is set out below:

Name of Committee members

ZEEHERE

Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHTEE
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RERT L
Mr. Tang Jianrong R L.

Mr. Qu Weimin BHRESE

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 30 September 2010 and had
renewed the written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code which was adopted by the Board on 27 March 2012. As
at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee had five
members comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors
and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, Mr.
Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin, Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia
Lingxia. Mr. Lai Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Directors and the senior management, as well as specific
remuneration packages, conditions and terms of employment
for the Directors and senior management, and evaluating
and making recommendations on the employee benefit
arrangements.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Board,
upon the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee with
reference to the Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties,
responsibilities and performance and results of the Group.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting was
held by the Remuneration Committee to review and make
recommendations of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. No alternate Director was authorised to attend
such meeting and the attendance record of each Committee
member is set out below:

Name of Committee members

ZEEREHS

Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHNTES
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RIFWESEE

Mr. Tang Jianrong R L.

Mr. Qu Weimin BERLE
Executive Directors HiTEF

Mr. Qian Yixiang SR E

Ms. Jia Lingxia BEETT

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of
the Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out below:

Remuneration bands [ il

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T%1,000,000 7T

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11
to the financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 30 September 2010 and had
renewed the written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code which was adopted by the Board on 26 August 2013.
As at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee had five
members comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors
and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, Mr. Tang
Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin, Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia.
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which became effective on 26
August 2013. A summary of the Board Diversity Policy is outlined
below.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance. It recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for
identifying qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with candidates being considered against objective criteria
and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring
the implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy.
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Furthermore, a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) has
been adopted and became effective on 31 December 2018.
According to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
shall consider the following factors, which are not exhaustive
and the Board has discretion if it considers appropriate, in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate regarding
the appointment of directors or re-appointment of any existing
Board member(s): (a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment,
experience and reputation in the business and industry; (c)
whether the proposed candidate is able to assist the Board in
effective performance of the responsibilities; (d) commitment in
respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the businesses
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience, as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time; (f) compliance with the criteria of
independence, in case for the appointment of an Independent
non-executive Director, as prescribed under the Listing Rules,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time; and (g) any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.

In terms of the nomination procedures of the Company, the
proposed candidates will be asked to submit the biographical
information (or relevant details) in a prescribed form by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee shall,
upon receipt of the biographical information (or relevant details)
of the proposed candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is suitable. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank them by
order of preference based on the criteria as set out above. For
the person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a director at the general meeting of the Company pursuant to
its constitutional documents, the Nomination Committee shall
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed election of director at the general meeting. The
Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised seven Directors,
which is characterised by diversity in terms of gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience
and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting was
held by the Nomination Committee and the work performed
includes reviewing and making recommendations to improve
the structure, size and composition of the Board. No alternate
Director was authorised to attend such meeting and the
attendance record of each Committee member is set out below:

Name of committee members

ZEEREHS

Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHNTES
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk RIFWESEE

Mr. Tang Jianrong L.

Mr. Qu Weimin BERLE
Executive Directors HiTEF

Mr. Qian Yixiang BRMEE

Ms. Jia Lingxia BEETT
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Directors’ responsibility

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the Directors determine as necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board will
continue to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group. The risk
management and internal control systems are reviewed annually.
The internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable
(but not absolute) assurance against material misstatement or
loss, and manage (rather than eliminate) the risks of failure to
achieve business strategies.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal controls procedures
of the Group including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programmes and budget and
considers the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company effective and adequate.

Internal audit function

The Internal Audit Department monitors compliance with
policies and procedures and the effectiveness of internal control
structures across the Group and its principal divisions. The
Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and ensures the internal controls are in place and functioning
properly as intended.

BEMREZX

EENER

EEARRBAEMASRMNEBEVITR
ERARBEBRAHEHIN B EREREANEE
BERFNSEEUBRE - U BB 2R

Qﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁéiéﬁfﬁﬂ%ﬁ(T?ﬁlﬁiéﬁﬁﬂ

SRR METEER RV BN ABEIE -

EERAAEREAKENGEAVHHRER - &
EFEU TR AAEH A RERELLEREN
ELBEARBENEKRTHABEFSMGEST
It EESREBZFEERERRGAMER
%

N BB EE 12
EESARASERNEEFENBRE - &
REERABEZEZRETFERN - NBEPEE
R 2R\ B B2 I FEE TS A b S BE K B8 AR BRI 2K A
EREAE(EIFBE)RE - UREE(MIEH
BR)ARBEEBEG R R MER ©

BE_ZT_—FT-_A=+—HLFER &
EECEHASEARIEIEN BRI “}E$
SEESF RPBRRBETENER -
BEREREE RN DA&EIﬁﬁ%EE’JiEEJII
RELRFRABERERRE  LR/AEAR
BELABEERTBULTER

A B 2 A% BBl B
NEEESERAEERETEHRMEBRER
FRRFREST RASES IR - NIEEIE
HMEERNEZZESRELERIBANIE
P22 AR ANTE HAMGE 1E -

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021 —& — —F 4

49



50

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

TEERRE @)

Also, the Board engaged an external independent consultant to
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems which covered certain material controls,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as risk management functions during the year ended
31 December 2021. The assessment report was reviewed by
the Audit Committee and the Board. No major issue but areas
for improvement to the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems have been identified. All recommendations from
the external independent consultant would be followed up by the
Group to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Group therefore considers that the internal
control and risk management processes are adequate to meet
the need of the Group in its current business environment.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remunerations
paid and payable to the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited
was set out as below:
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Remuneration paid

Nature of services and payable

R ENREMSEHE

RMB’000

ARETIT

Audit service Z PR 1,440
Other non-audit service H I B ARTS

— Agreed-upon procedures on interim report  —FRERSRE 2 W ERRF 350

— Agreed-upon procedures on continuing —BEBBEL S HERF 10

connected transactions
Total Ha5T 1,800

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, a dividend policy was adopted by the
Company (the “Dividend Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend
Policy, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) in an
amount representing not less than 25% of the distributable net
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
in any financial year, whether as interim and/or final dividends.
The dividend, if any, will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. In
deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account, inter alia,
the following factors: (a) the Company’s results of operations;
(b) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the subsidiaries of the Group; and payment by the
subsidiaries of cash dividends to the Company; (d) the level of the
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Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants; (e) any restrictions on payment of dividends
that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders; (f) the Group’s
expected working capital requirements, future expansion plans,
investment plans and future prospects; (g) general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and (h) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or payment of
future dividends under it are subject to the Board’s continuing
determination that the Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of dividends would be in the best interests of the Group
and Shareholders, and are in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.

The Company in annual general meeting may declare dividend
but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Board. The Board may from time to time pay to the Shareholders
such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by
the profits of the Group, and may also from time to time declare
and pay special dividends of such amounts and on such dates
and out of such distributable funds of the Company and as it
thinks fit.

The Dividend Policy is posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors.
The Board also recognises that effective communication with
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and to
attract new investors. Therefore, the Company communicates
with its shareholders and investors through various channels,
including the publication of interim and annual reports, press
announcements and information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Company continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of
the Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. The
Company has regular meetings with the financial analysts, fund
managers and potential investors, and has participated in a
number of investors’ conferences and roadshows organised
by various investment banks since the listing of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 20 October 2010
in order to enhance the Group’s relationship with the equity
research analysts, fund managers, institutional investors and
shareholders, as well as their understanding of the Group’s
strategies, operations and developments. All discussions were
limited to explanations of the previously published material and
general discussion of information which is not inside information.
The Group continues to strengthen its investors’ relationship by
participating in roadshows and conferences.

The AGM provides opportunities for the Shareholders to meet
and raise questions to our Directors, the management and
the external auditors. The members of the Board and external
auditors will attend the AGM. The Group encourages all
Shareholders to attend. Shareholders can raise any comments
on the performance and future directions of the Company and
exchange views with the Directors, the management and the
external auditors at the AGM.

In view of the aforementioned various channels of communication
with the Shareholders, the Board considered the Company’s
communication policy conducted during the year ended 31
December 2021 effective.
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The 2020 AGM was held on 31 May 2021 and the attendance

—ECERERRBFRER_ZE_—FIHA

record of each Director is set out below: Z+—HB87 SEEFHFECE E’J 15 E 5 a0
™
Name of Board members AGM
EEgHRERS BREEAS
Executive Directors NITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang (Chairman) BEMEE(FE) 1
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEERT 1
Mr. Zha Saibin BEWSRE 1
Mr. Qian Zhongming SRR A 1
Mr. Yu Wai Ming® RIETRFHED 1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Mr. Tang Jianrong EREREE 1
Mr. Qu Weimin BEREA 1
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk TRIZBE S A 1
Note: KizF -

(i) Mr. Yu Wai Ming was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from
8 January 2021.

Mr. Qian Yixiang, attended the 2020 AGM which was held on 31
May 2021 by telephone conference to answer the questions from
shareholders. The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company,
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, also attended the 2020 AGM by telephone
conference to answer questions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there have been no
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL CODE

Internal Audit Department

On 1 January 2016, the Company set up the Audit Department
to facilitate the reform of the Company’s procedures. From
August 2016, the audit department has converted into an Internal
Audit Department following the expansion of the function of the
internal control team. The Internal Audit Department is separate
and independent of the operation and management system of
the Group. The upmost responsible officer for internal control and
audit of the Group is the professional staff with internal control
and audit experiences.
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The principal duties of the Internal Audit Department are,
according to its own work plan, giving opinions directly to each
relevant (involved) department or its head officer regarding
system improvement, identification of procedural issues, and
requesting for counter feedback. For example, identifying issues
on streamlining and optimising the procedures and systems are
reported to the responsible person of the respective department;
reporting the results of inspection on the execution of quality
system to the operations manager of the respective plant; and
reporting the audit result on significant malpractices to the Audit
Committee. On the other hand, the department also provides
assistance of internal control in respect of audit or streamlining
of working procedure, and directly reports to the relevant
departments or subsidiaries upon their request.

The duties of the Internal Audit Department are as follows:

e To implement and lead the streamlining of systems and
procedures of the Group headquarters and its subsidiaries
according to its work plan;

e To provide assistance to each department in implementing
optimisation of systems and procedures according to its
work plan;

e To conduct audit on the business of the Group and each of
its subsidiaries according to its work plan;

e To assess the formulation and execution of the Company’s
system according to its work plan;

e To inspect, on its own or with other departments, the
abuse of power, incompliance, violation of financial system,
embezzlement, leakage of confidential information, bride as
well as economic crime within the Company;

e To be responsible for the audit or participate in the audit on
the Company’s significant business activities, projects and
material business contracts.
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Procedures on identifying, assessing and managing
material risks

1. Engaging an external independent consultant to conduct
high-level risk analysis once a year;

2. The Internal Audit Department participates in the Company’s
annual high-level strategic meeting and various monthly
business meeting as well as irregular interview with
the management to identify the risks in operation and
management and consider to include the same in the internal
audit plan;

3. If found any material risks, the Internal Audit Department
immediately reports to the Board and follows up the status
of the improvement of the matter.

Procedures on reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control system and
resolving material internal control defects

The Internal Audit Department identifies risks by reviewing the
existing system and procedure to determine whether there is any
defect in critical procedures according to the system design and
whether it is reasonably designed.

Further, the department identifies the effectiveness of internal
control through regular and non-regular audit.

Information disclosure system

The Group has an information disclosure system to ensure
the access to and confidentiality of inside information until
consistent and timely disclosure of such information is made. The
system regulates how these inside information are handled and
disseminated, including the followings:

e The designated department reports the information on
potential inside information to the Board, which shall
determine if it is an inside information and timely issue the
same pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules;

e Information is widely and non-exclusively disclosed to
the public via different ways such as financial report,
announcement and the Company’s website so that its fair
disclosure policy is implemented and disclosed.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) shall be convened on the written requisition
of one or more members of the Company, at the date of the
deposit of the requisition, holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at the general meetings of the Company.
The requisition must specify the objects of the meeting and
must be signed by the relevant requisitionist(s) and deposited
by the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may themselves convene a meeting provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
2 months from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders must submit a written notice of proposals they
wish to put forward at an AGM or EGM with the detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary by email to
ron.chan@boerpower.com, or by fax to (852) 2544 9292, or by
mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Unit D, 6th
Floor, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
within a reasonable time prior to the general meeting so that the
Company will be allowed to meet the notice period to be given
to all the Shareholders as set out below. Detailed procedures
and the notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders
concerned at an AGM or EGM varies according to the nature of
the proposal. The procedures for the shareholders to convene
and put forward proposals are set out in the notice of the AGM
or EGM and are also available on request to the Company
Secretary. The notice period is set out below:

(i) At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

(i) At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or any resolution of
the Company in an AGM.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns with contact information of the requisitionists to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary by email to
ron.chan@boerpower.com, or by fax to (852) 2544 9292, or by
mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Unit D, 6th
Floor, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements. The nature of the
principal activities of the Group has not changed during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in
the sections headed Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 27 of this annual report.
Such discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4
of this report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 78 of
the annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 3 June 2022 to Thursday, 9 June 2022 (both days
inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2021
AGM of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Thursday, 2 June 2022.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made
charitable donations amounting to RMB30,000 (2020:
RMB825,000).
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current assets
(including property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and intangible assets) of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in notes 13 to 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 27(c) to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB124.4 million (31 December 2020: RMB150.2 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or under the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and note 27(a) to
the financial statements respectively.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from the
five largest customers of the Group accounted for 24.5% (2020:
35.5%) of the total revenue of the Group and the revenue from
the largest customer accounted for 7.7% (2020: 16.2%) of the
total revenue of the Group.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 14.2% (2020:
13.2%) and 34.3% (2020: 23.0%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2021, respectively.
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None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report, the Directors were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qian Yixiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Jia Lingxia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Zha Saibin® (Mr. Yu Wai Ming as his alternate Director)
Mr. Qian Zhongming

Mr. Yu Wai Ming®

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tang Jianrong

Mr. Qu Weimin

Mr. Lai Wai Leuk

Note:

() Mr. YuWai Ming was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from
8 January 2021. Mr. Yu was also appointed by Mr. Zha Saibin as his
alternate Director with effect from 8 January 2021.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
at each AGM provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. Ms. Jia Lingxia and
Mr. Zha Saibin, the Executive Directors, and Mr. Tang Jianrong,
the Independent Non-executive Director, will retire from their
office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and shall be eligible to
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM pursuant
to the Articles.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, which may
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a term of three years in accordance with their respective
appointment letters.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
into any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
is considered to have an interest in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions below,
none of the Directors or entities connected with a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or related companies was a party during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Company’s controlling Shareholders, has confirmed
to the Company of his/its compliance with the non-competition
undertakings given to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition as defined in the prospectus dated 7 October
2010. The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) have reviewed the status of compliance and also
confirmed that all the undertakings under the Non-competition
Deed have been complied with by the controlling Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

The particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the five highest paid employees during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in notes 10 and 11
respectively to the financial statements and section headed
Remuneration Committee above.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme (the “Expired Scheme”) was approved
by the Board on 17 June 2011. The Expired Scheme operates
for 10 years starting and expired on 16 June 2021.

During the year, the Company had not purchased any of the
Company’s existing shares on the market for the purpose of the
Expired Scheme.

On 6 May 2021, a total of 4,000,000 shares were granted to Mr.
Zha Saibin, an Executive Director, under the Expired Scheme,
representing approximately 0.52% of the issued shares of the
Company, the shares were vested on 6 May 2021.

Upon the expiry of the Expired Scheme, a new share award
scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted by the Board on
17 June 2021 (the “New Adoption Date”). The purposes of the
New Scheme are to recognise the contribution made by certain
employees of the Group and to provide eligible employees,
being any employee, whether full time or part time and whether
becoming the employee of the Company before or after the New
Adoption Date, of any member of the Group from time to time,
save for those excluded employees as determined by the Board
or the trustee (as the case may be), with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group and attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Group. The New Scheme involves existing
shares and the Board hopes to encourage employees of the
Group to have, through shares awarded under the New Scheme,
a direct financial interest in the long-term success of the Group.
The New Scheme operates for 10 years starting from the New
Adoption Date.
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The total number of all the shares purchased by the trustee under
the New Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued shares as
at the New Adoption Date (being 77,376,900 shares) unless the
Board otherwise decides. The maximum number of shares which
can be awarded to a selected employee under the New Scheme
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the New Adoption Date.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
had not purchased any of the Company’s existing shares on the
market for the purpose of the New Scheme.

During the year, a total 4,000,000 shares were granted to an
employee under the New Scheme, representing approximately
0.52% of the issued shares of the Company, the shares were
vested on 28 December 2021.

As at the date of this report, the trustee held 16,343,000 shares
under the New Scheme, representing about 2.11% of the issued
share capital of the Company. The remaining life of the New
Scheme was about 9 years and 3 months.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2021 was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or the chief executives of the Company or
any of their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to 56 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

The Directors and chief executives of the Company who held
office as at 31 December 2021 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code:

EERTHRARN QA RABEZBE R
7 HERORESHERRAR

RIEA A AV S R R B % R
1)) oS E /BT B B R MATe: -
AR I I R TR A0 8 AR 28 ) RS2 - 70
—E-—#t- =+ - BAERNAARES
REBFTRA B BB AR R AR (E
2 2,585 KRR P RED - AR R
MRS

Total number  Approximate

of ordinary % of total

Directors Capacity shares held issued shares
EETRG
BE= 27} REZERAY #ABNNEIL
Long position in shares
IR EIFE
Mr. Qian Yixiang Interest of controlled corporation 521,115,0000 67.35
BRMEE REZEER R
Ms. Jia Lingxia Interest of controlled corporation 521,115,0000 67.35
BEAEER L REESER R
Mr. Zha Saibin Beneficial owner 4,780,000 0.62
EEW R E BREAA
Note: Wit -

()  The 520,815,000 shares were owned by King Able Limited (“King Able”)
and 300,000 shares were owned by Bright Rise Trading Limited, both
companies owned as to 50% by Mr. Qian Yixiang and 50% by Ms. Jia
Lingxia. Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia are thus deemed to be
interested in those shares by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company held any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company (other than those
held by the Directors and chief executives of the Company) were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Substantial shareholder Capacity

EFERR KEEH

Long position in shares

BRI B
King Able Beneficial owner
HEHFRAA EnEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 29 March 2021, Boer Cloud Technology Co., Limited (“Boer
Cloud”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Mr. Qian Yixiang
and Ms. Jia Lingxia, pursuant to which Boer Cloud disposed its
100% equity interest in Wuxi Boer Cloud Technology Co., Limited
(“Wuxi Boer Cloud”) at a consideration of RMB10,000. Upon
completion of the disposal, Wuxi Boer Cloud is owned as to 90%
by Mr. Qian Yixiang and 10% by Ms. Jia Lingxia, respectively.

On 30 June 2021, Boer (Wuxi) Power System Co., Limited (“Boer
Wuxi”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Wuxi Boer Cloud,
pursuant to which Boer Wuxi disposed its entire 60% equity
interest in Boer Energy Jiangsu Co., Ltd (“Boer Energy”), at a
consideration of RMB50,000.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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Qian Yixiang is an Executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer of the Company, one of the
controlling Shareholders of the Company and the husband of
Ms. Jia Lingxia. Ms. Jia Lingxia is an Executive Director, the
chief operating officer of the Company, one of the controlling
Shareholders of the Company and the wife of Mr. Qian Yixiang.
Wuxi Boer Cloud is owned as to 90% by Mr. Qian Yixiang and
10% by Ms. Jia Lingxia, respectively. Accordingly, Mr. Qian
Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and Wuxi Boer Cloud are connected
persons of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules, and the
transactions constituted connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The details of the transactions are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 June 2021.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Boer Smart Technology (Wuxi) Co., Limited (“Boer Smart Wuxi”)
is effectively owned as to 1.3%, 57.26%, 37.33% and 2.67% by
Mr, Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia, Mr. Qian Haosheng and Mr.
Tao Linwei. Mr. Qian Haosheng is the son of Mr. Qian Yixiang
and Ms. Jia Lingxia. Mr. Tao Linwei is a family member of Mr.
Qian Yixiang and Mr. Qian Zhongming, an Executive Director of
the Company. Accordingly, Boer Smart Wuxi is an associate and
a connected person of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules.

Boer Energy is directly owned as to 60% by Wuxi Boer Cloud, a
company owned as to 90% by Mr, Qian Yixiang and 10% by Ms.
Jia Lingxia, respectively. Accordingly, Boer Energy is an associate
and a connected person of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into the following continuing connected transactions with Boer
Smart Wuxi and Boer Energy which are subject to the reporting
and annual review requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out
below:

The purchase framework agreement with Boer Smart
Wuxi

On 6 August 2020, Temper Energy International, S.L. (“Temper
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the purchase framework agreement (the “Purchase
Framework Agreement”) with Boer Smart Wuxi pursuant to
which Temper Energy may purchase the intelligent household
equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi from 6 August 2020 to 31
December 2022. The order amount, the terms of delivery and
price of the intelligent household equipment in each order shall
be separately negotiated, entered into, and be performed under
separate purchase order to be entered into between Boer
Smart Wuxi and Temper Energy with such requirements and
specifications to be mutually agreed in writing in accordance with
the terms of the Purchase Framework Agreement.

Pursuant to the Purchase Framework Agreement, the price of
the intelligent household equipment will be priced on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business of Temper
Energy with reference to the prevailing market price of the same
or similar products offered by independent third parties.

The annual caps under the Purchase Framework Agreement
are EUR530,000, EUR1,250,000 and EUR1,250,000 for each
of the years ended/ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022
respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2021, Temper
Energy purchased intelligent household equipment from Boer
Smart Wuxi amounted to EUR965,000 (equivalent to RMB7.4
million) (2020: EUR73,000 (equivalent to RMB577,000)).

The processing subcontracting framework
agreement with Boer Smart Wuxi

On 6 August 2020, Boer Wuxi, Boer (Yixing) Power System Co.,
Ltd. (“Boer Yixing”) and Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor
Co., Ltd. (“Boer Tezhong”), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, entered into the processing subcontracting
framework agreement (the “Processing Subcontracting
Framework Agreement”) with Boer Smart Wuxi pursuant to
which Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing and Boer Tezhong may provide
assembly and processing services for manufacture of intelligent
household equipment (the “Assembly and Processing Services”)
to Boer Smart Wuxi from 6 August 2020 to 31 December 2022.
The service fees of the Assembly and Processing Services in
each order shall be separately negotiated, entered into, and be
performed under separate subcontracting order to be entered
into among Boer Smart Wuxi, Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing and
Boer Tezhong with such requirements and specifications to be
mutually agreed in writing in accordance with the terms of the
Processing Subcontracting Framework Agreement.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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Pursuant to the Processing Subcontracting Framework
Agreement, the Assembly and Processing Services to be
provided to Boer Smart Wuxi shall be conducted fairly in line
with the market practice, and such terms offered to Boer Smart
Wauxi shall not be less favourable than those offered to any
Independent Third Parties by Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing, and Boer
Tezhong.

The annual caps under the Processing Subcontracting
Framework Agreement are RMB4.2 million, RMB10.0 million
and RMB10.0 million for each of the years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, service fees for the provision of the
Assembly and Processing Services to Boer Smart Wuxi by Boer
Wuxi, Boer Yixing and Boer Tezhong amounted to RMB1.3
million (2020: RMB3.5 million).

Details of the Purchase Framework Agreement and Processing
Subcontracting Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 August 2020.

The sales framework agreement with Boer Energy

On 13 September 2021, Boer Wuxi entered into the sales
framework agreement (the “Sales Framework Agreement”)
with Boer Energy pursuant to which Boer Wuxi may supply
the electrical distribution equipment and related components
and spare parts to Boer Energy from 13 September 2021 to
31 December 2023. The order amount, the terms of delivery
and price of the electrical distribution equipment and related
components and spare parts in each order shall be separately
negotiated, entered into, and be performed under separate
purchase order to be entered into between Boer Energy and
Boer Wuxi with such requirements and specifications to be
mutually agreed in writing in accordance with the terms of the
Sales Framework Agreement.

Pursuant to the Sales Framework Agreement, the price of
the electrical distribution equipment and related components
and spare parts will be negotiated on an arm’s length basis
and determined in the ordinary course of business on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than those
provided to Independent Third Parties by Boer Wuxi in the PRC.

The annual caps under the Sales Framework Agreement are
RMB5.0 million, RMB15.0 million and RMB15.0 million for each
of the years ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023
respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2021, Boer
Wuxi did not sell any electrical distribution equipment and related
components and spare parts to Boer Energy.
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Details of the Sales Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 September 2021.

Confirmations from Independent Non-executive
Directors and auditor of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter
containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there
was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the
benefit of any of the Directors of the Company or an associate
company.

During the year, Directors and Senior Officers Liability Insurance
is in place to provide appropriate cover for the directors and
senior management of the Group. However, such insurance
coverage shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to such director and senior
management.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal control
and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

KPMG resigned and BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor
of the Company on 5 December 2018. Save as disclosed above,
there is no change of auditor in the past three years.

BDO Limited will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO
Limited as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Qian Yixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R

IBDO

TEE : +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

HEARATHEEP1115E
JkZH2548

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BOER POWER HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Boer
Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continved)
B ZBERE (@)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

EREEIR

ARELFSFEEREBAMANERHE - RAY
AHGAMBHREANEARRERNFH - 5
LEBREERMBAEBF AV BREALE A
ERRETREN - RAIT S ELFREEMR

BRENER -

Refer to note 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 106.

The Key Audit Matter

Deferred tax assets are recognised mainly relating to unused
tax benefits of impairment losses on trade receivables and the
carry-forward of tax losses and tax credits.

The Group considered that it is probable that future taxable
profits according to the business plans and budgets for the
relevant subsidiaries will be available against which these tax
benefits can be utilised.

We identified the recognition of deferred tax assets as a
key audit matter because the realisability of deferred tax
assets, which depend on whether sufficient taxable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future,
are associated with significant degree of estimates and
judgements.

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment about the recognition of deferred
tax assets included:

— understanding and evaluating the
management’s procedures and relevant
controls regarding the completeness of tax
exposures and estimating the provision for
income tax and deferred tax assets to be
recognised.

— reviewing the latest correspondence with
the tax authorities to assess management’s
estimates.

— assessing the probability that the
subsidiaries of the Group may use their
deferred tax assets in the future , particularly
with regard to the ability of each subsidiary
to generate sufficient future taxable profits
in a foreseeable future allowing the use of
existing tax benefits carried forward.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B BERE (@)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continved)
B ZBERE (@)

RECOVERABILITY OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 97 to 99.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of trade
receivables was RMB546,718,000 (gross trade receivables:
RMB2,194,868,000; allowance for impairment losses:
RMB1,648,150,000), which represent approximately 57% of
total current assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position (2020: 58%).

The Group measures the loss allowance for its trade
receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) using the provision matrix approach.
The provision matrix is determined based on information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
conditions, as well as the time value of money.

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the significant degree of judgements made by the
management in assessing the impairment of trade receivables
and determining the allowance for impairment losses.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability
of trade receivables included the following:

— obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Group’s key
internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and making allowance for
impairment losses;

— obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individual balances and
evaluating the impairment allowances with
reference to debtors’ financial condition, the
industry in which the debtors are operating,
the ageing of overdue balances, historical
and post year-end payment records,
legal documents relating to disputes with
customers, rescheduling of payment agreed
with customers and other relevant information
obtained from other audit procedures;

— assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by the management in development
of the ECLs including considering the
customers’ expected payment pattern along
with macroeconomic information; and

— oObtaining a summary of subsequent

settlements relating to trade receivable
balances at 31 December 2021 and
inspecting underlying documents relating to
the payments received, on a sample basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B BERE (@)
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continved)
B ZBERE @)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B BERE (@)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continved)
B ZBERE @)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Amy Yau Shuk Yuen
Practising Certificate No. PO6095
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEREEMZEkRR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HEZ-—F+-A=1+—RHLFEUUARKEE)
2021 2020
:g: - ﬁi — 7 —= E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR%T ARETTT
Revenue WA 6 572,643 816,665
Cost of sales SHEM AR 6 (380,662) (579,670)
Gross profit E7 6 191,981 236,995
Other net (loss)/income Hith(B518), WA F8E 7 (5,147) 8,356
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS A (71,466) (79,515)
Administrative and other operating expenses TH R EMEERFRY (80,316) (142,418)
(Provision)/reversal of impairment losses for trade M E 5 &Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ Y
and other receivables EEE () BE 19(0) (4,970) 55,392
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries e WE”D\ETH%T& 17 94,006 -
Profit from operations il 124,088 78,810
Finance costs & a%ﬁ%ﬁ 8(i) (27,412) (35,964)
Profit before taxation sz NTpraval 8 96,676 42 846
Income tax expense FTiSFif 9(a) (84,215) (33,512)
Profit for the year F R 12,461 9,334
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEENE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to  Hi&ATsE EFBEAIBRH
profit or loss: BR :
Exchange differences on translation of financial & A Bl A FEES)
statements of operations outside Mainland ERBTEIRER A
China ME N =58 16,604 9,998
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEEKRAEE 29,065 19,332
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE(EET (E8) -
Equity shareholders of the Company A AR 12,142 15,824
Non-controlling interests FEE A 319 (6,490)
Profit for the year FREF 12,461 9,334
Total comprehensive income attributable to: JEMR R EU A
Equity shareholders of the Company NS 28,746 28,306
Non-controlling interests FEE R 319 (8,974)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENZEEE 29,065 19,332
Earnings per share gRER
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) BERR#EEARESD) 12 1.6 2.1

The notes on pages 83 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FRaEMBRRER

at 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)
R-ZE-—F+-A=+—HBAARKETE)

2021 2020
—B--F ZE-THF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FizE AR¥ETR AREFT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 13 145,081 233,430
Investment properties EME 14 88,423 94,424
Intangible assets EmEE 15 1,128 1,213
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEZA
profit or loss ERMEE 28(e) - 28,511
Contract costs BRI A - 1,104
Pledged deposits BEBIFR 20(b) 60,000 30,000
Deferred tax assets RIERIRE B 26(b) 70,063 152,801
364,695 541,483
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 151,255 138,930
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 R Bt AR K 19 579,714 603,499
Pledged deposits BEAGTR 20(b) 157,648 154,331
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 20(a) 77,735 39,866
966,352 936,626
Current liabilities Reas
Borrowings == 21 411,359 390,631
Trade and other payables BB S N EMER 22 485,270 378,972
Lease liabilities HERAE 23 - 10,801
Current tax liabilities BNEAR IR B tE 26(a) 290 408
896,919 780,812
Netcurrentassets =~~~ #BHEERE 0000000 69,433 195814
Total assets less current liabilities ~~ ®AERRBAH/ 00000 434128 697297
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Borrowings B’ 21 96,767 193,013
Lease liabilities HERE 23 - 36,225
Amounts due to related parties FET A& 5 5RIE 30(a) 66,961 266,802
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEAE 26(b) 3,035 3,116
166,763 499,156
NET ASSETS EEFE 267,365 198,141
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continved)

mEMBRR R @
at 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)
R-ZE-—F+-A=+—BAARKEE)

2021 2020

—B--F ZE-THF

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE ARETT AREFIT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRR#E
Share capital R 27(c) 66,010 66,010
Reserves & 27(d) 201,863 195,234
Total equity attributable to equity AN TR RIEG

shareholders of the Company ST 267,873 261,244
Non-controlling interests FEiEIR R (508) (63,103)
TOTAL EQUITY ST 267,365 198,141

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 March 2022.

Qian Yixiang
S
Director

EF

The notes on pages 83 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED' STATEMEN \dﬁ H—IANGES INEQUITY O

FeHEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-Z - —F+-A=+—BLEFEAAREE)

Balence at 1 January 2020 RIZZTE-F-AfEE 66,010 (100,121) 20,710 1,605 256,018 21436 312 (50,480) 17488 232938 64,129 178,809
Protfor ey | - - - - - - - BT T 1 YRR ') N
Other compretensie ome EpREE - - - - - - - @ S pey 9m
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 ENAEE - - - - - - - 12482 16,82 28306 (8974) 10322

Beence at 31 December 2020and ~ R=F-TETZA=T-BR

1 January 2021 “Eo-E-f-RNEE 66010 (f00121) 2070 1505 256,018 2143 32 (3199 M2 26144 (63103) 198140
Profit for the year R - - - - - - - - 12,142 12,142 319 12,461
Qther comprehensive income bl el - - - - - - - 16,604 - 16,604 - 16,604
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ENZLE - - - - - - - 16,604 12,142 28746 319 20,065
Equity-setfied share-based ransacton  HEREEHRAZHRS % N N - 2067 - - o o o 2967 - 297
Vesting of shares ranted under RERMZEHASRERLRR

share award scheme % - 2182 270 (4472) - - - - - - o o
Disposal of subsidiaries HENHBAR 17 N N N N (245459 N N %) N (25084) £2.276 47,192
Baance at 31 December 2021 i Sl s 6010 (749%9) - - BB 246 m ey s e (508 267,365

The notes on pages 83 to 164 form part of these financial E83F 164 B WM T B ZEBHEN —ZF
statements. 5o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ﬁ' = iiﬁlllbgi

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_ZT-—F+-A=+—BLEFEAAREE)

2021 2020
el =%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARET T BN S
Operating activities R
Cash generated from operations KEMEARS 20(c) 375,568 334,617
Income tax paid BTETSHEL (1,676) (649)
Net cash generated from operating REEEFEYE
activities R 373892 333968
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of property, HEEVMHE BEL
plant and equipment B (3,799) (1,872)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEETEEMNRK (137) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ’i%ﬁ B = K
plant and equipment AT FUE 2,722 2,089
Proceeds from disposal of investment ﬁ’%&é%%ﬁﬁ B
properties hia - 928
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries ~ H &M BARMSRIEFE 17 (1,326) 3,262
Interest received BUFILE 920 963
Placement of pledged deposits FABEBER (116,025) (94,331)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits RIRARRER 82,708 62,404
Net cash used in investing activities REZTHFMBAESFE (34,93_7) ________ (26557)
Financing activities A& EE
Proceeds from borrowings EEFS A 20(d) 770,726 802,090
Repayment of borrowings HEEE 20(d) (841,068) (962,285)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE 20(d) (4,959) (6,102)
Payment for interest on borrowings BER SR (25,758) (32,534)
Repayment of advance from related parties (B fEE 5 2 20(d) (199,841) (138,532)
Net cash used in financing activities REEEMBARSSEE (300,900) (336,363)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBRESEEY
cash equivalents i, (GRd) B 38,055 (28,952)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BAWEER
at 1 January HEZEY 20(a) 39,866 68,879
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSE) > & (186) 61)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=BA=+—HBH
at 31 December HENRBEESZEY 20(a) 77,735 39,866
The notes on pages 83 to 164 form part of these financial Z583E 164 B MM i E B ZE T ERER AN — 6
statements. o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F58R R B E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHAI - UAREEHE)

1

2

GENERAL INFORMATION

Boer Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 February 2010
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in design, manufacture and sale of electrical
distribution equipment and provision of electrical distribution
systems solution services in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

e  Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior period.

— &R
BEEIEBRERAB(ARR DR -Z
—ZEF_A+_HREFASHELRIESE
22F (—NN—FRPIS - (iR A RIBETTE
FHEHETMKIABEREER AR « &
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ERELEUARIREEE R5H RR ©

SRS 8 B R B ([ BB
L)

(a) RAFFTSRIETNEBUBRE
28]
BEGRIAGE BMZ BT A
R R BImERER] - ZEEANAE
EASITHEAERER

o BAEMBHEEAER FEE
FHERISE39%E - BAMFRE 2R
SR NBBYHEHREERF 165
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 HMNBBIEBREERN( FEEE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) HEA ) (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) B B8 ief 5K 2 02 F ] SRAEAB R]
issued but are not yet effective BN HHREER
The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially SR D SRS AT SRAN T 51 B AR B 15 R
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been ?“ﬁH_EEF%Eﬁ%i&ig FEAERAEVER
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early ET%%};@ ET%EL%E? B i;g%! ;$$
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention BRRNEENE ARAZSZE -
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilties as Current or Non- %l’%@zﬁ%gw ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁéﬁiﬂiﬁiﬁiﬂ : % f’f
current, Presentation of Financial Statements - EALACCHEY ﬂa@izi’ig;fa W\i} ’Ea iﬁ\z
Classfication by the Borrower of a Term Loan that f*fﬁf@f‘m‘ K EHERZ
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause? i ) %E\SW e s
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use' Ate H:FEEW* RERERE A TR
L ACHES o
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfling a Contract' EREIERN  BREAN-EAAHZAA
ERGACHES)
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® FEMBREEN  RBALP
E17%:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework? fif/ﬁg?f ﬁﬁ%&?l BOER 2 Rl
ER(BF
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor %.f\jéﬁj 4?5 iﬁ%ﬁ‘l Eﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ@é Eh%
10and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture* FRRAE  ZRAERNELIN
9385005
gy )
Annual Improvements to - Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of ‘15/_%@7} T EA ﬁ\?;ﬁﬁ%*&%i%ﬂ%%fﬁ@%
HKFRSs 2018-2020  International Financial Reporting Standards, —E\FE ?Wwfﬁ%f@ 5 E?! Jf BRH
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, HKFRS 16 “BoREZ BRSRARGGIEMTAL
Leases, and HKAS 41 Agriculture’ FRAE BRMBRERAE 165 A
g1 UREEGHEAZ45H:
[R5 I(BTR)
3 ARy AL i =
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies® AEEE SHBRNES
and HKFRS Practice E1RREEH
Statement 2 BREEAER
NEER
[
Amendments to HKAS 8 ~ Definition of Accounting Estimates? AkRE ENERENES
£ (1B5T%)
: L1y FERD Y P =
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilties arising éé@fﬁ,ﬁ\! * x%ﬁtlﬁ%;ﬁ’\]é ER&ER
from a Single Transaction® FIR(BATX)  BOELHR
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! Eé:%;:ifﬁj —HARzEHBRZFE
2022. BRI o -
2 Effective for business combinations for which the date of 2 EMZE&E Eﬂﬁ:g:\iﬁffﬂfﬁﬁ%é
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period Sﬂ;iﬂ (B 8 R sk 2 R R T & o
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. i*ﬁ( - o .
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January P RCE-ZF-A-ARZRABZFE
2023. mEEm. ~ ;
4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or ‘ ﬁi%f‘%ﬂ¢gﬁﬁﬁ‘/ﬁ%ﬁi RREFEE Afs 2
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning BBz FERRETNEEL ST
on or after a date to be determined. A
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that AARIESTERAARRERZEBIT AR
the applipations Qf thg ame;ndments and revisionlin the BB TR e YisA Rt E A
future will have significant impacts on the consolidated %5

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

HEs -

AAREEHE)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the provisions of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The impact of COVID-19 in current reporting
period

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has
dramatically affected global economic activities since
early 2020. While disruptions are more immediate and
pronounced in certain industries, its impact on the
electrical distribution equipment industry in the PRC,
where the Group’s principal operations are located, has
been rather modest during the current reporting period.
Nevertheless, as the pandemic continues to evolve, it is
challenging at this juncture to predict the full extent and
duration of its impact to the business and the economy.
Management has assessed the impact of COVID-19
across the Group, and up to the date of this report, has
not identified any areas that could have a significant
impact on the financial performance or position of the
Group.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”). These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) because the
functional currency of most of the Group’s subsidiaries
is RMB. All financial information presented in RMB has
been rounded to the nearest thousand, except when
otherwise indicated. The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values.

3

LR

(a)

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M= )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group and a trust established
for the Group’s share award scheme. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs. The cost of
an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in
the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(C

ONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists, the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

e the size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

e substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting rights;

e other contractual arrangements; and
e historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against
the carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised
losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing a part interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate are recognised on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest it that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M= )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of
completion.

Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

Plant and machinery under finance lease are depreciated
over its useful life being no more than 20 years.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate class of
property, plant and equipment when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it
is completed and ready for its intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B H R & Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(C

ONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(e)

(f

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group has elected
to present the ROU assets in “property, plant and
equipment” applying a cost model (see note 4(g)).

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 4(r)). Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost
of investment properties, less their residual values, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of 20 years. Both the useful life and residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(C
(f

(9)

ONTINUED)
Government grant (continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use ("ROU") assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for
an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise ROU assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term of less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

ROU asset

The ROU asset is initially recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (jii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

The Group has elected to present the ROU assets in
“property, plant and equipment” applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the ROU
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall
use the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

The Group as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for
a lease that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification
to an operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the maodification, recognising the remaining lease
payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the remaining lease term.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit
or loss and included in administrative and other
operating expenses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows.

10 years
10 years

Software
Trademarks

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (note 4(r)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. Trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Instruments (continued)

)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at FVOCI
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and bills receivable measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criteria is
more appropriate.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i

Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise; or

e it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 TESHBERE

(CONTINUED)
() Financial Instruments (continued) i) EMITEE)
(i) Financial liabilities (i) SFEE

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVTPL,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (jii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SIS -

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being
the ECLs provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out in note 4(i)
(I1); and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(C
0

(k)

ONTINUED)
Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method/first-
in first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract costs

Contract costs are either the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil
a contract with a customer which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained. Such costs are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and the costs are
expected to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs
relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide goods or services
in the future; and are expected to be recovered.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds
the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs
that relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset
relates is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M= )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with

the policy set out in note 4(j)(l).

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over

time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S E AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(m) Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Intelligent Electrical Management Solutions
(“IEM Solutions”)

IEM Solutions include sale of electrical distribution
systems, Engineering Procurement and Construction
(“EPC”) project, and sale of electricity. For the IEM
projects where a performance obligation is satisfied
over time based on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a good or service as the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced, the revenue is recognised over time. The
progress of completion is measured by reference to
the proportion of the actual cost incurred to date to
the estimated total cost of the relevant contract. For
the EPC projects where a performance obligation
cannot be demonstrated as being satisfied over
time, the revenue is recognised at a point in time
when control of a good or service passes to the
customer. There is generally one performance
obligation.

Revenue arising from sale of electricity is recognised
at a point in time upon the transmission of electric
power to the power grid companies in accordance
with meter readings.

(i) Sale of components and spare parts of
electrical distribution systems

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time
upon when the customers accepted the products.
There is generally only one performance obligation.
Contracts generally contain no right of return,
warranty and no variable consideration.

4 FEETFBRGE)
(m) WA RS ()

HERBEMAE P EREMIRGES
EPRHBE—FMNEAREMNDNR
B - B AR R MR M IRE
B WEAAKEREFKE RMGE
Zé M RER 5P R ITIRRAEITIT
cHEREERAEEREENRE
ﬂ SEE D - AIRIBZ A RHER M
WA BRRERNFATENARAE
FREERIN BRI o B RERE R A
B IR FE R A —F A THY
BRMmE @ﬁ%%%%ﬁiﬁm
15SEAITTRENE  XSPEBRTEH
BEARERD T EETHE -

() BEEELGEEEERAER(IEM
FE])
EMFRBIEHEERERS - T
2 RKERER(EPCHEE UK
HETN - MIRBEEWRRG (1E
AAREERNBHAIZSIEARZER
EERAZSREABCENNE
BE)D TR E L 7 HEE R — R
NEKBHETZIEMBEEMS
IR AR — ERBS R N FERR o oAk S
TIREES DEEENEERR AN
A EMETARANE DT
2 RN E —EBREBAEREREE
mmE%TEZE@EHﬁD g

AREY SR H SR ERP
iR - —RRE—BREOET -

ﬂ%i%%Aﬁﬁ&iﬁg
BN EEPRE R ERE

(i) SHERERGTHREH

ENRNIRETE  RERSE
mEVEERE - AL - WATER P
XEEDDE’JETFﬁEHE © *ﬂﬁm ﬁ*
EEWEE BH— &T@% =1
R RFE R AT ER(E

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021 —&— —F 4R

105



106

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of
group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SN AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.
(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.
(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(q) Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of
the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B H R & Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Impairment of assets (other than financial

4 FESTHHERAE

n EERE(TEESREE)

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment/Investment property
under cost model;

interests in leasehold land held for own use; and
investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.

AEENE2HAREH TNIEENK
HE NETEABPSRBTZEFEE
HIRRERIE B O MR HREREE
ERENFEIRD

BRAEARYE - BB R&RHERE
YE

FEEANEE L mER &
RITB AR LB A RRMIE ©

i BEH A Y E e /R (A FER LS
RARFERBEMENRSE)H5HD
REKREER  AIEEREE/HZE
A e SR o REEIRBE AR SR
X AR EERIEE TSV HR
SERAEHERIIER  ERBERT
B ERRIEZ BB MRS ERGIE
EHSERIERE -

HEE R EIRERE - EEMREER
BEHAWOSENEEFERTERE
HEEFE R REETNSERERRNBE
FEIENREEEDREBRMEDE
TERBREE - REE B EIRE RN R
R - WA EERBEMEEM
BHREERAEHSEIIR - EUER
T BEEEREREZRBM RS
ERIRFEA S FIL IR

ERERIRERSEEEEENG
AARKREREBETE @ KT RRE ERK
BENRITHISHEAREERRTE
B ERRORAIRIRRRIRER
HfE -

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021 —Z = —4 4

109



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M= )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(s) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

4 FESTHBXRE)

(s) BAER ()
(b) %@

%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ—fﬁ%;\% FZAATHE
HEENRERE - B4

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic () ZRALHFRREBHKE
partner; Hia

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) ZRALHERBHREHED
partner; and FZ Rk

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5

(i) FZBATHZBALHEBNL
REFEHZHEA -

FTESHAERMEFTIRERREN

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(@) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.

In accordance with the new interpretation HK (IFRIC)-
Int 23, the Group makes consistent judgements and
estimates for both current tax and deferred tax. If the
facts or circumstances on which the judgement and
estimate was based change or as a result of new
information that affects the judgement or estimate, the
Group reassesses the judgement or estimate.

FERR

FERAS BT HRRE - EFEATAKRER
B 38 5 1 B A SOR 1S %DE’J%‘F&ELEE@
EfFL B - At RRR - BREfAET RAR
FARAR T BN B AR M H 4R S48
MEZREL - BRERATEEBRINZER
ate

ARG AR RR S RHBETE -
HesthrHFhrER 1?5;515?#&
CHEE IR H‘JEAEZHJ%F?EEW P RAHER

[ By 2 B IR B MOR SR ERR - RURME ;.THHF'EJ
B R REAREIERR,

(a) FriE®t

ETEMESHRBESREE TR HHARR
RIBRIEBEH HIE - AEBRET R
SMETE - WIBEFHRTRIS RS
AR SN ERESTE %Eﬁ%ﬁ
AR RIS RG89 pr i 2

RENRAES (ERHERERRE
A®)—REF23%  ARERDHH
B RBIEBURE I — B LIB R f3t -
AT IR B RSB
B SRS IR O H A
- A B T B
ox

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021 —& — —F 4

111



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5 TESHHERMGFTEREREN

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION FERR(E)

UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) ECLs impairment (b) FHEEHERE
The measurement of impairment losses under RIS BB REERFEOS - StEFT
HKFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets BERNEREERRMEEREBHEELH
requires judgement. In particular, the estimation of the B CEEREBETRERE R HEE
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral E e E I BT R IRIRERE N
values when determining impairment losses and the IR EEREEE MIFE - ZEEEt/H
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These ZIARZS|HE - MEE S B NER
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in ERREEE) -

which can result in different levels of allowances.

(c) Fair value measurement (c) ATESE
A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s FFAREEYBERERTNZIEEERE
financial statements require measurement at, and/or EEE AT EAER SR EAFE -

disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial REFESRNIIEEHEERABHAF
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market Bt E 20T se(E A5 rl B R A BUE
observable inputs and data as far as possible. NEIE - REBE AV EASAE=EMERD
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements B A BUE ThE R PTIE A A E R A
are categorised into different levels based on how BHa ASIER ] EIREERBEATR
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique ST AFEELR])

utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

e Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical o F—H:FRMS EMEREE 2
items (unadjusted); WECREFAE)

e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other o FE M B ABIE AN AT
than Level 1 inputs; BR A ok A ARE

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from o B4 TAEEAE A SR (B
market data). WIER B MHEIE) ©

The classification of an item into the above levels is 15 B JyiRE T A 5278 B A {ER

based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a EEFEAFENG ABIENRESFR

significant effect on the fair value measurement of the DR IMER - THENER 2 BHE

item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised B s A BAfAIERR o

in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following item at fair value: REBRIRATEA=ET5|ER

e Financial assets at FVTPL. o BNV EFAEZMNEREE -
For more detailed information in relation to the fair B AR AT EAENE ZHAE
value measurement of the item above, please refer to £ B2RIMEE29() ©

note 29(e).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

6 WAKTDHERHRE

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s top management for the purposes of allocating
resources to and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of business activities. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the reporting segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, and results include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment,
but exclude exceptional items. Segment assets excluding
deferred tax assets and tax recoverable are managed on
a group basis. Segment liabilities excluding deferred tax
liabilities and tax payable are managed on a group basis.

The Group has two (2020: two) reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

— |EM Solutions, which include sale of electrical distribution
systems, EPC projects, and sale of electricity.

— Components and Spare Parts Business (“CSP
Business”), which include components and spare parts
for application on electrical distribution equipment or
the basic function units of the solutions and sells such
components and spare parts to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6 WAKRDBRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information is presented on the basis of business segments, REBDBEEZTERE  HEWA K
segment revenue and results are based on the revenue and EETVRIBIEMA R « TR T HEBHI
gross profits of IEM Solutions and CSP Business. AREREE -

2021 2020

—B--F ZZ-TE

IEM CSP IEM CSP
Solutions  Business i1l Solutions  Business Total

THR TR
EMER SHER Ol EMEERE DHER st
LK T ORS00 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARETT NSNS SN S

Revenue A
Timing of revenue recognition W A FE2 KRS
At a point in time RE—RFRE2 397,097 163,446 560,543 622,386 172,586 794,972
Over time F—BERER 12,100 - 12,100 21,693 - 21,693
Total st 409,197 163,446 572,643 644,079 172,586 816,665
Cost of sales HEMA (260,746)  (119,916) (380,662) (452,087) (127,583)  (679,670)
Gross profit EZ il 148,451 43,530 191,981 191,992 45,003 236,995
Depreciation and amortisation S ASHE R AR

included in cost of sales WEREH 7,440 7,085 14,525 9,991 8,459 18,450
The reconciliation of depreciation and amortisation included FTAEERAMITE REHEGAITER
in cost of sales to consolidated depreciation and amortisation HHERERDT ¢
is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

Cost of sales $HE RN 14,525 18,450
Administrative and other operating expenses 1T &2 E fib & B 2 9,626 12,134
24,151 30,584
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6 WARDEBHRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
The Group does not allocate any specific assets or REBVERDE - HE MERED BT
expenditures for property, plant and equipment to the FREESRAZZLESE » DHREZS
operating segments as these assets are managed on a BEREBAEEER  HIXZLERRA
group basis and the chief operating decision maker does WEFERAAEEREERED IR o
not use such information to measure the performance of the
reportable segments.
No geographical segment analysis is presented as HRAEERBANEH S WA RENGHKEF
substantially all revenue and gross profit of the Group are B - 0 2 5 & 2R AT o
attributable to the PRC.
7 OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 7 Htb(EE),WAEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Interest income from financial institutions KB & BEERNF B YA 920 963
Refund of value added taxes (“VAT") IEFR ([ IREFR )RR 1,329 1,926
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BENMERERN
equipment g 679 991
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYENRZ - 304
Property, plant and equipment written off MEEE - BB NEE (9,201) -
Change in financial assets at FVTPL BATERABERT
(note 28(e)) TRIEEZE(5E28() 2,135 1,239
Impairment losses of interest in an associate 7 —f&1HE 4 A =] HIRERS
BEEE = (551)
Government grants BRITHE B & 700 1,837
Others HAtb (1,709) 1,647
(5,147) 8,356
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8 KRHIANGZF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB RSN 2R (GTA) -
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
() Finance costs: () IR
Interest on borrowings EBERNE 25,758 32,534
Finance charges on leases liabilities HEBENRMEER
(note 23(a)) (Mi5E23(a)) 1,654 3,430
27,412 35,964
(i) Staff costs: (i) BIRA :
Contributions to defined contribution REFRFURIRETE
retirement plans Hax 8,483 5,380
Equity-settled share-based payment LA 25 45 B AR (5
expenses (note 25) S (FiEE25) 2,967 -
Salaries, wages and other benefits 54 HEREMET) 71,624 84,220
83,074 89,600
(i) Other items: (i) EMIRE -
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 138 283
Depreciation e 24,013 30,301
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN NS 1,800 1,800
Short-term lease expenses A ERY 623 716
Impairment losses on contract costs BRIKARRERR - 48,161
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNEEIE, (M) F5E 904 (1,273)
Cost of inventories (note 18(b))# FERA(KFE18(0))* 372,012 565,663
#  Cost of inventories includes RMB56,572,000 (2020: t FERABIEARES6,572,000(ZE=F
RMB64,304,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation (including F: AR#64,304,00050) @ BB TRA - 37
depreciation of the ROU assets) and amortisation expenses, which E(RECHREESENE) REHASER - %
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed SENDRBESHMEERF AR LXK
separately above or in notes 8(ii) and (i) for each of these types of T 58 i) R (i) BB B R FR A% S S SR S A o
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHRBIN  UAAREFE)

9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9 mEBERkHEMEEKRSERFIR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND B

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement

(b)

of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income represents:

(a) FEBERHEMZEKWERPHH
==

2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Current tax B EATR IE
Provision for PRC income tax for the year £ pxe B BS54 8 & 943 723
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFERETR
prior year (FRRERE) 615 (10,609)
Deferred tax IEFERR IR
Origination and reversal of temporary EAENEEERER
differences
— Withholding tax (note (iv)) —FEHHE (M 7E(v)) (81) (1,809)
— Others —Hfh 82,738 45,207
84,215 33,512

Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(b) BIEB X ERREABRAEN S
N AR -

2021 2020
—B-—fF —TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
Profit before taxation R A 96,676 42,846
Notional tax on profit before taxation, HEAPR R AR
calculated at the rates applicable in the R E HIBRT A F 89
jurisdictions concerned HEIE 24,169 10,123
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax FEEEH EAFER
treatments (note (iii)) TS 22 2 (B REi) (1,338) -
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  NAJHIF B & ORI TR 22 &8 85,047 4,604
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARRMANREZE (24,009) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERHARBARIAREN
recognised (note 26(d)) s 2 (KisE26(d) (537) 29,394
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAFERETIRS
prior years (FREERE) 615 (10,609)
Others HAtb 268 -
Income tax expense FTiSRi S 84,215 33,512
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHAIN -

AAREEHE)

9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

()

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman lIslands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

No provision has been made for Profits Tax in Hong Kong and
Corporate Taxes in Mexico, Indonesia and Spain as the Group
did not earn any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and
did not earn any taxable profit subject to Mexico, Indonesia
and Spain Corporate Taxes during each of the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

PRC income tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
implementation regulations, provision for PRC income tax of
the Group is calculated based on the statutory income tax
rate of 25% except for Boer (Wuxi) Power System Co., Ltd.*
(“Boer Wuxi”), which is qualified as High and New Technology
Enterprise, and is therefore entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%.

Dividends withholding tax

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
implementation regulations, dividends receivable by non-
PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax
treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January
2008. In addition, under the Arrangement between Mainland
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident will be liable for
withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend income derived
from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the
PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for
based on the expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008.

The English translation of the company name is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.
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2 P TR BB ZR 1R 10% 15 R < FE 40
Bl o BEAN - IRIBC A RS B BT &
BRI TS o S AN LERRTLA
RHOREBER - A BREETE
ERBIEZBEAAINIHEPEAF25%
HIA LA - ZEEVEERARKAF
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EHEABEEREZSMNBARMR 2T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g s ey

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments are as follows:

10 EEf 2

EEMEHIIT

Basic salaries, Contributions Equity-settled
allowances to retirement

share-based

and other benefit payment
Fees benefits scheme expenses
X558 DY 5
EHR BAER  AENRG
e Hb g B TH%H b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT  ARETR AR¥®TT ARETr AR¥TR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE-ZF--&
TZA=T-HLEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang BRREE - 6 23 - 29
Ms. Jia Lingxia EABNL - 6 23 - 29
Mr. Zha Saibin BEWEE - 5 20 1,664 1,689
Mr. Qian Zhongming BimREs - = = = =
Mr. Yu Wai Ming rESHEE
(appointed on 8 January 2021) (R=Z=—-F-ANH
BZHE) - 696 15 - 1
Independent Non-executive BUFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Tang Jianrong ERELE 99 - - = 99
Mr. Qu Weimin EREREE 99 - - - 99
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk BREEE 99 - - - 99
Total @zt 297 3 81 1,664 2,755
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 10 ESME (&

Basic salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Contributions ~ share-based
and other o retirement payment

Fees benefits ~ benefit scheme expenses Total
£15¢ AR
2R RICEN  HERRE

e EftEH ST At &t

RMB00O  RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=-F-F%
TZA=T-HLEE
Executive Directors HiTEZE
Mr. Qian Yixiang 22y it - - 9 - 9
Ms. Jia Lingxia EZExt - - 9 - 9
Mr. Zha Saibin BRIVEE - - 7 - 7
Mr. Qian Znongming BimREs - - - - -
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat BEERE
(retired on 5 June 2020) (W=Z2-FF~ARA
RIE) 126 - - - 126
Mr. Tang Jianrong Eaits 145 - _ _ 145
Mr. Qu Weimin ERREE 123 - - - 123
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk REREE
(appointed on 2 July 2020) (RZBZFFLAZHA
EZf) 53 - - - 53
Total @t 447 - 25 - 472
During both years, no discretionary bonus was paid or RREEER » ANEBN &S B E
payable by the Group to any of the Directors. MEFOEMBIBEAL -
During both years, no amount was paid or payable by the PREFEA @ 4NEE IO R ERHE
Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to join or MEENEMRIE - (EAINBAREFSMN
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. BAAREERFHNESSIEABREE -

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL §TATEME TEi(conﬁnued)
p S TEL AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAZEFHA  UARKEFHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 10 ESM < (&)

FR NEESHRERSEONE - FEH
s

During the year, four Directors waived their emoluments as
follows:

Executive Directors ~— $77Z%F

. y
D
W
M

Mr. Qian Yixiang BRMTE 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
—E-—F%—A—HEZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H 995
Ms. Jia Lingxia EEABEL L 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
TR F—-A—HAEE-_—F+ZA=1+—H 796
Mr. Zha Saibin EEWRE 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
TR F—-A—HAEE-_—F+ZA=1+—H 796
Mr. Qian Zhongming ~ #{hBE %4 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
—E-—%—A—HEZZE-_—F+=-—A=+—H 796
Total #a5 3,383
BEEHEZERBER AT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M= )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHRBIN  UAREFE)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 BE5B& AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two hEEeMeATHR  HFRE(ZZEZZE
(2020: Nil) of them are directors whose emoluments are FEIAREE  BENMES M08
disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in BRI =%2(ZZT_ZF: A5)ALTH
respect of the remaining three (2020: five) individuals are as & sazEm T
follows:

2021 2020
B ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREBT T

Salaries and other emoluments Se REMENE 1,975 2,974
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes — EEFIET 242k 35 255
2,010 3,229
The emoluments of the three (2020: five) individuals with the —R(ZZ2Z2F AR maMe AL
highest emoluments are within the following bands: e gEmnT
2021 2020
—EB-—fF T TF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEK
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 3 5
During both years, no discretionary bonus was paid or RREFEA - AEEIWED S ERE
payable by the Group to any of the five highest paid AAZREME A THERBBIEA
individuals.
During both years, no amount was paid or payable by RBEFEAN  ANEBYEE MK EMNET
the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as ARZ&EEME A LNTAZIE - EA
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BAAREESNBAEESNESSIEARE
compensation for loss of office. B1E -
There was no arrangement under which any of the five FR - IAEEESME AT ERGS
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any EERRPEMNMHENZH(ZTFTF
emolument during the year (2020: Nil). ) o

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RBBHBIN - UAREERE)
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BRELRZEF

(b)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB12,142,000 (2020: RMB15,824,000)
and the weighted average of 757,426,000 ordinary
shares (2020: 749,426,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

ERERZNTIRBEARRFERKRER
FEARFARBE12,142,0000(ZF =
T AR¥E15,824,0007T) M FRE
BT E AR hAE 19 8757,426,000%
TE T 749,426,0000% ) 5T E 40
™

EERINETHIE

2020
—ETF
‘000
TR
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HBETH
el 773,769 773,769
Effect of shares held for share award RIBR O EZEFEIFE N
scheme (note 25) I ey 2 (HI5E25) (16,343) (24,343
Weighted average number of ordinary W+ A=+—HBH
shares at 31 December IR INE S 8 757,426 749,426
Diluted earnings per share (b) BREHERZF

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
each of the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
and therefore, diluted earnings per share is the same as
the basic earnings per share.

BE_T-_—FR-_ZT_ZFF+_H
=t RALEFETEAEEE NN
B Al B EERNRERERR
FARR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
MR R M= )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEHRBIN  UAREFE)
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% » BERRE
Right-of-Use assets
RREEE
Furniture,
fixtures Prepaid
Plant and Motor  and other leasehold  Landand  Plantand
Buildings ~ machinery  vehicles  equipment  Sub-total land  buildings  machinery  Sub-total Total
filh - £8 it 1H#R BER

87 HRERER nE - RAMRE I i L5 L bt it
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOD0  RMBOOD  RMBIOO0

ARHTT ARETL ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETL ARETR ARETR

Cost: A

At1 January 2020 W-Z-FE-F-H 218911 89,359 7478 25,698 341,506 37,441 4,685 62,159 104,285 445,191
Addttions RE - 209 240 1,423 1872 - 484 - 484 2,356
Disposals e (1274 ¢l (2,307) - (3589 - (949) - (949) 4,538)

At 31 December 2020 and RZF-%F

1 January 2021 +ZA=+-Hk

“Z--%-f-B 217,697 89,560 5411 2,121 339,789 3744 4,220 62,159 103,820 443,609
Addttions RE - 2774 1,025 - 3,799 - - - - 3,799
Disposals e - (2,964) (571) (3,697) (7,232) - - - - (7,282
Written off it (29,053) - - (1,752 (30,805) - (896) - (896) (31,701)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF (906) (14,437) (473) (420) (16,236) - (3,324) (62,159) (65,483) (81,719
At 31 December 2021 R-E--&

+ZA=+-H 187,738 74,933 5,302 21,252 289,315 3744 - - 37441 326,756
Accumulated depreciation: ~ Z3f17E
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-F5-A-A 87,732 58,475 7,151 18,916 172,274 6,818 1,160 9,101 17,079 189,353
Charge for the year ERITE 9,589 8916 381 836 19,672 749 813 3,032 4594 24,266
Written back on disposals HERE (363) - (2,128 - (2.491) - (949) - (949) (3.440)
At 31 December 2020 and WoZ-%5%

1 January 2021 TZA=+-Rk

“5--%-f-H 96,958 67,301 5,354 19,752 189,455 7,567 1,024 12,133 20,724 210,179
Charge for the year ENE 8,703 5,680 21 583 15,186 737 47 1,672 2,826 18,012
Written back on disposals HERD - (3,340) (57) (1,278) (5,189) - - - - (5,189)
Writen of i (21,599) - - B (2160 = (696) . (0% (22500
Disposal of subsiciares HEHBAR - (3,831) (370) (276) (4477) - (545  (13805)  (14350)  (18827)
At 31 December 2021 i S

+-A=+-H 84,062 65,909 4,624 18,776 17331 8,304 - - 8,304 181,675
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 W%

+-A=+-H 103,676 9,024 768 2476 115,944 29,137 - - 29,137 145,081
At 31 December 2020 W-E-%5%

+ZA=t-H 120,739 22,169 57 7,369 150,334 29,874 3,196 50,026 83,09 233430

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(C
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ONTINUED)

Buildings are situated on leasehold land with medium-
term lease of 50 years in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, certain buildings with carrying
amount of RMB32,685,000 (2020: RMB78,292,000)
have been pledged to bank as security for bank loan
(note 21(c)).

As at 31 December 2021, the group was in the process
of obtaining the property ownership certification in
respect of certain properties located in the PRC with net
book value of RMB24,013,000 (2020: RMB29,419,000).

Prepaid leasehold land

The Group’s land is located in the PRC, and the Group is
granted with land use rights for a period of 50 years. As
at 31 December 2021, the land use rights with carrying
value of RMB24,013,000 (2020: RMB29,419,000) have
been pledged to a bank as security for bank loans (note
21(c)).

13 % - BMERRE(E)

(a)

URFPEEELT BT AEA0F
FREATEAY

b) A—E=-_—F+-_A=+—H &&

(c)

(d)

EMIRTERAETHRABAARE
32,685,000 C(—E—FF : AR
78,292,00070) KIETF - {ERESIRTT
B EA R (FIEE21(0) -

RZZBEZ—F+=-A=+—H F~%H&
ERLEAIR R B E T YIRS
BHEEE ZEVENEEFERAR
04 013,000 ( ZE_FF : ARK
29,419,0007T) °

FANHEE T
AEEBNTHARTE  MAEER
B T AES0E - N —
F+-A=1+—HB BRHEEABARE
24,013,000t (&2 —ZF : ARM
29,419,0007T ) By - b A E R T
817 - EABUSIRITE KA T (MY
=F21(c)) °
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

W

14 REWHE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFIT
Cost: R :
At 1 January n—HA—H 122,457 123,277
Disposals HE = (820)
At 31 December nt+=—A=1+—H 122,457 122,457
Accumulated depreciation: I E .
At 1 January n—HA—H 25,433 19,594
Charge for the year FAFE 6,001 6,035
Written back on disposals H & B o] - (196)
At 31 December RNt+—A=4+— 31,434 25,433
Impairment: BE :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEt+-A=+—H 2,600 2,600
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 88,423 94,424

(a) The Group’s investment properties consist of residential,
commercial and industrial properties situated in the
PRC. Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. In
2021, no impairment loss (2020: Nil) was charged to the
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive

income.

(b) The fair value of the investment properties was
RMB110,468,000 (2020: RMB121,358,000) as at 31
December 2021, which is determined by reference
to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market with adjustments to reflect the condition
and locations of the related properties.

(c) As at 31 December 2021, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the property ownership certificate in respect
of investment properties located in the PRC with net
book value of RMB70,258,000 (2020: RMB76,259,000).

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
—Z - —4F4F% Annual Report 2021

(a)

(b)

(c)

AEBRENEBRBUNTENETE
BRERTEYE - WEMETIAKARH
fREFHTELBEBRRIIKR - R=F
——F UEREBR(ZT_FTF
)N B K EA 2 IR R IR o

RZZE-_—F+-A=+—"08  ZSK
EMENRFEEAREE110,468,000
T(ZZEZFF : AR¥121,358,000
L) BEATFENDS2ERBETISASE
R B BRHER S (L) BET
A I R AR B8 0 2 RO AR R sb B o

RZZE_—F+-_A=+—8 ~"&EH
EFEM R RIS Y E IR ERT
EHEE ZEVENEERFEAAR
870,258,000 ( — B -FF : AR
76,259,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 5 BELEE
Software Trademarks Total
204 [ st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETET
Cost: BN :
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_FTF—HF—H 1,053 5,442 6,495
Written off s - (3,100) (3,100)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A - 117 117
At 31 December 2020 N-ZB-FFE
and 1 January 2021 +—A E—i—* H
= —%F—H—H 1,053 2,459 3,512
Additions = 137 - 137
Exchange adjustments b 5 A = (247) (247)
At 31 December 2021 RITE_—%F
+—HA=+—H 1,190 2,212 3,402
Accumulated amortisation: Sty
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZF—HF—H 547 3,951 4,498
Written off b€ - (2,538) (2,538)
Charge for the year FAEH 153 130 283
Exchange adjustments PE H % - 56 56
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
and 1 January 2021 +=ZA= ‘l’ S|
=T —4F—H—H 700 1,599 2,299
Charge for the year FNHH 103 35 138
Exchange adjustments PE 5 R EE - (163) (163)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+=—A=+—H 803 1,471 2,274
Net book value: BREFE ¢
At 31 December 2021 NZE-——4F
+—-—HA=+—8H 387 741 1,128
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+—HA=+—H 353 860 1,213
The amortisation charge for the year is included in FREHE I ARGRE B M A2 E R

“administrative and other operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

SR[TTR R E A2 &R A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

— = —

=

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
in 2021 and 2020 which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name of company
NRER

Cheering Success Holdings Limited

MK ERARAT

Power Investment (H.K.) Limited

BERA(EE)ARAR

Boer Wuxi (note ()

BEEH ()

Boer (Yixing) Power System
Co., Ltd.” (‘Boer Yixing") (note (i)
BE(ER)ENNEERAT
(TEEEE ) (FizH))

Yixing Boai Automation Complete
Sets of Equipment Co., Ltd.*
(Yixing Boal") (note ()

HEELEBIHERBERAT
(TEEEI ) (FzH))

Boer Cloud Technology Company Limited.”

(Boer Cloud") (note (i)
BEENRERAR(MBEZ)) (M)

Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical
Capacitor Co., Ltd.*
(Boer Tezhong”) (note (i)
BERHHEENERR
BRAANBERE]) ()

Sydenham (Wuxi)
Switch Co., Ltd." (note (i)
EEH (55 FE
BRAF (M)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
MR/ R
REEHH

BVI/Hong Kong
AERIES/

Hong Kong
£l

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
i

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC
&

Particulars of
issued and
fully paid-up
capital
BEETRER
BRI

1,000 shares of
US$1 each
1,000 BHEE
1ETHRA

100,000 shares or
HK$100,000
100,000%%
100,000 T

US§71,000,000
71,000,000% 7T

US$16,250,000
16,250,000%7

RMB110,000,000
ARH%
110,000,0007C

HK$5,983,725
5,983,725/ 7T

RMB60,000,000
ARE
60,000,0007

1S$8,000,000
8,000,00037C

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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—E--F

Direct

EE

100%

16 RIBARIRE

TRESINAR_EZ—FR T _ZTFH
AEEEE  BENEBEBEERAZENK

B2 AN - 1 B AR -

BRI E A

Proportion of
equity interest
attributable to the Company
RAREEREL S
2021 2020
b 23
Indirect Direct Indirect
54 ER [GE3
- 100% -
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

BT B dn

Principal activities
TEEH

Investment holding

Investment holding

Design, manufacture and
sale of electrical distribution
equipment

Fit HERHERERE

Design, manufacture and
sale of electrical distrioution
equipment

Bt WEREERERE

Design, manufacture and
sale of electrical distrioution
equipment

Fit HERHERERR

Provision of energy
efficiency solutions

RESEAE

Design, manufacture and sale
of capacitors
i RERHEESE

Manufacture and sale
of components and
spare parts

HERHETHREN



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16 RIBRRNIRE (F)

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of
equity interest
attributable to the Company
Place of Particulars of ALFRERRELA
incorporation/ issued and 2021 2020
establishment fully paid-up —B--F k-t 3:3
Name of company and operation capital Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
AL/ KL BRIRAR
REER REBERH ERME HE 4 B i
Temper Energy International, Spain 1,317,235 shares - 100% - 100%
S.L. (‘Temper Energy’) Fifii of EURS.1 each
Temper Energy International, 1,317,235/ ik
S.L.([ Temper Energy ) EESIBTARG
Boer (Wuxi) Software Technology Limited* PRC HK$50,000,000 - 100% - 100%
(note () il 50,000,007
BE(RH) BHEHHERAT
(FizE0)
Boer Power System Jiangsu PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% - 100%
Co., Limited* (note i) H AK%10,000,0007
BEBNZRIHARLT
(RizEG)
Boer Energy Jiangsu Co., Ltd.* PRC RMB43,350,000 - - - 60%
(“Boer Energy’) (note (i) H AR%43,350,0007
BERRI&ARAT
(TBEALR 1) (i)
Wuxi Boer Photovoltaic Technology PRC RMB4,000,000 - - - 60%
Co., Ltd." note (i) i ARH#4,000,0007
ESRERRBRAERARE0H)
Notes: Hiat -
()  These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in ) =ELRH
the PRC with limited liability. ¥

(i)  These entities are limited companies established in the PRC.

*

The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

Principal activities

TEEH

Trading of components
and spare parts
THREHEE

Development and
sale of software

RERHERN

Trading of components and
spare parts
THREHEER

Provision of energy
efficiency solutions
i IS

Development, manufacture
and sale of photovoltaic
products

R REREEERER

RRPBEKRINEREEIEEE D

(i) ZEEBRBARFBNIHEREEAT -

The English translation of the company names is for reference only.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MR @)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SIS -

AAREEHE)

17 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Du

ring the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group

disposed of the following subsidiaries which were engaged
in [EM Solutions in the PRC:

@

(i)

(iii)

Guangdong Boer Cloud Technology Co., Ltd
(“Guangdong Boer Cloud”)

Boer Cloud, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant to which
Boer Cloud disposed its entire 51% equity interest
in Guangdong Boer Cloud, at a consideration of
RMB383,000, the disposal was completed on 30 April
2021.

Wuxi Boer Cloud Technology Co., Ltd (“Wuxi Boer
Cloud”)

Boer Cloud entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia, both of
which are controlling shareholders and Directors
of the Company, pursuant to which Boer Cloud
disposed its 100% equity interest in Wuxi Boer Cloud,
at a consideration of RMB10,000, the disposal was
completed on 29 March 2021. Upon completion of the
disposal, Wuxi Boer Cloud is owned as to 90% by Mr.
Qian Yixiang and 10% by Ms. Jia Lingxia, respectively.

Boer Energy and its subsidiaries (“Boer Energy
Group”)

Boer Wuxi, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Wuxi Boer Cloud, pursuant to which Boer Wuxi
disposed its entire 60% equity interest in Boer Energy,
at a consideration of RMB50,000, the disposal was
completed on 30 June 2021.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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17 HEHNB AT
BE-_T-—F+-_A=+—BILtFE "
AEBEE THRTRIEBEMS R B
AT

(i)

(1)

(iii)

ERBEZNFERQAR(ERBE
Z

AAGEEEEN2ENBARBESE
Y B = R M R EEE RS B
It BEEHEENEREEZ2ITHN
51% M1 - R {E A AR B383,0007T °
HESBR-_E-_—FmWA=+H=
;ﬁo

FEWEENEARAT(HENE
2))

BEEREMAEEREAELL (Y
BARFRREERES) TR

EpaE o B BEEHEEREDR
BEEZMWI00%E  KESARE

10,0007C » HEEBER T - —F=
A=+ NH%K - HERETRE @ &
SEEES R MBFOMIL BB HIO%
PS4 K i B B X 1A E10% M -

BEERREMBLAG(BERRSE
=l

AAREBEEAENEZENBRARBEE
HEmISIEESE ﬂik%@%%@'ﬁ
it BEESEEENEERRE2ITN
60% A% #E - ﬁﬁ%AE%mommo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

17 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17 HEMEB AT (&)

EHEMBRRRHERRNEERAR
s

The assets and liabilities of the disposed subsidiaries on the
date of disposal were as follows:

Guangdong Wuxi Boer  Boer Energy
Boer Cloud Cloud Group Total
ERBEE EHEBEE BEUREE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®T T ARETR
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE N RE 4 - 62,888 62,892
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABEN
through profit or loss SREE - - 30,646 30,646
Contract costs BHMAK - - 1,068 1,068
Inventories FE 235 - - 235
Trade and other receivables B E 5 M EMERT 421 118 67,522 68,061
Cash and cash equivalents Be kA2 SEY 153 31 1,585 1,769
Borrowings £ - - (5,176) (5,176)
Trade and other payables [EFTE 5 R EIRR (210) (164) (246,155) (246,529)
Lease liabilities HEAE = = (43,721) (43,721)
Net identifiable assets/(iabilties) & 7 EA &BIEE,/
disposed of (&) 603 (15) (131,343) (130,755)
Release of reserves upon disposal & i B[] - - (25,084) (25,084)
Non-controlling interest JEIEAR RS (295) - 62,571 62,276
Gain on disposal HEWE 75 25 93,906 94,006
Total consideration satisfied PRET R ELE
by cash 383 10 50 443
Net cash inflow/(outflow) HEEEMFHRSE
arising on disposal: WA/ (i) -
Cash consideration RerE 383 10 50 443
Cash and bank balances BHERE RBTER
disposed of (153) (31) (1,585) (1,769)
230 21) (1,535) (1,326)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
AR -

(B>

AAREEHE)

18 INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

18 FE

(a) FEMBMRRERANEFERSE :

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Raw materials R 28,087 32,980
Work in progress TS 75,493 61,091
Finished goods Bk @ 47,675 44,859
151,255 138,930

(b) BREXHW T AEBZNEFESHE
DHWMT -

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETIT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 372,064 566,564
Write down of inventories FEMA (52) (901)

372,012 565,663

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 EWNE 5 R HABR

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T ARBTIT

Trade receivables (gross) JEWE SRR 4a5E 2,194,868 2,324,317
Less: allowance for impairment losses B ORBEE RS (1,648,150) (1,784,134)

Trade receivables (net) JEWE SR FE 546,718 540,183

Bills receivable® FEU = IE 5,186 5,835

Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - HE2 Rk

other receivables Hof pE YL ERIE 27,810 57,481

579,714 603,499
*  Bills receivable represent bank acceptance bills in the PRC which * EREBRERAFERAREMEEREHF

are measured at FVOCI (see note 28(e)). RITHRH RIR(RKEE28(6)) ©

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

19 BEWE 5 R H MR (&)

(a) EWE SR IRER 2T

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables based on the invoice date and net

BEEHRHR  BURESREFORED

#r(ERER BB RIORRBE R EREE)

of allowance for impairment losses, is as follows: T
2021 2020
—B—— —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Within 3 months TR=M@A 195,396 201,419
Over 3 months but within 6 months BiB=EAEBTENEAR 100,102 95,205
Over 6 months but within 1 year HEANEARNE—F 193,808 209,153
Over 1 year FRiB—F 57,412 34,406
At 31 December A+—A=+—8 546,718 540,183

The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 days to

its customers.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

(b) R E B R AVRE
FE U B 5 BR K ARl (B 5 1R A B R AT

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade

receivables directly.

AEE-RAEEFPETI0ENEE

;H\Ho

% BRIFAKE AT AR KRR B R

FIBRERIR - FELIERT - BIBUER

1B B E A 5 BRI

The movements in the impairment allowance are as BEREZEESOT -
follows:

2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
At 1 January »—A—H 1,784,134 1,894,734
Provision/(Reversal) of impairment losses B & B¢ (@) 4,970 (55,392)
Uncollectible amounts written off b6 N (126) (55,208)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AT (140,805) -
Exchange adjustments PE 3 % (23) -
At 31 December n+—_A=+—H 1,648,150 1,784,134
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FERIN - AARIEETE)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents are cash at bank

20 RERREEEY

(a) RERBEE/YWARTRFRR
£

and in hand
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Cash and bank balances* IR& NIRTT4ERR" 295,383 224,197
Less: Pledged deposits*™* B BEIRE (217,648) (184,331)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEED 77,735 39,866

* As 31 December 2021, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB293,911,000
(2020 RMB220,311,000). Remittance of the RMB funds out
of the PRC is subject to the restrictions under the Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations of the PRC.

Hok

Bank deposits have been pledged to banks for bank loans
(note 21(c)), bank acceptance bills issued to suppliers and
quality guarantee issued to customers.

(b) Reconciliation of pledged deposits to the

consolidated statement of financial position:

* RIE-—F+-A=+—0 K&£EEFH
UARBTENES RIBTESHAAR
203,911,000 (ZBE-FF : ARK
220,311,0007T) ° [ BIRHME H AR
KB & A B OMNE BB RHIAR $IFTAR
MR o

= RITERANERIRITER(EE21()
AHERELNRITEERERATSE
HEVE SR o

b) BEMBEFTREAEHBERRERY
BE :

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T

Current assets MENEE 157,648 154,331
Non-current assets ERBEE 60,000 30,000
217,648 184,331
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
cash generated from operations:

20 RERFEEEY(E)

(c) BRBIANENRELEREENREHN
iR -

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —ECEEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FtaE AR¥T T ARETF T
Profit before taxation BB AT F 96,676 42,846
Adjustments for: FTONSIEEL A -
— Change in financial assets —RAFEFAER
at FVTPL NERMEESSY 7 (2,135) (1,239
- Amortisation of intangible assets — A E 8i(ii) 138 283
— Depreciation —E 8i(ii) 24,013 30,301
— Finance costs — B IS AR 8(i) 27,412 35,964
— Interest income from financial —RE & RHER
institutions FLEWA 7 (920) (963)
— Net gain on disposal of property, —HEDE  BEM
plant and equipment RENE
THER 7 (679) (991)
— Property, plant and equipment —MEE - BE
written off KB 7 9,201 -
— Net gain on disposal of investment —NEREWED
properties A 7 = (304)
— Net foreign exchange loss — SN 518 55 120 12,367
— Provision/(reversal) of impairment —GFEREEE
loss on inventories B, (BE) 52 (901)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —hENB AR (94,006) -
— Written off of intangible assets —MsEmEEE = 562
— Provision/(reversal) of impairment —EWE 5 K EM
losses for trade and other RRBRERE
receivables BB, (BE)  19(b) 4,970 (65,392)
— Equity-settled share-based —UEREEN
payment expenses RpZAEZE 8l 2,967 -
— Impairment losses on contract costs ~ — & Ik 2N R {E
E1a (i) - 48,161
— Impairment losses on interestinan ~ — A —RIEE & A T4
associate R AR R 7 = 551
Changes in working capital: LEE R
— Increase in inventories —FEEN (12,612) (9,098)
— Increase in trade and other — BB 5 Kk EAb
receivables ARFIE N 108,645 4,351
— Increase in trade and other —ERE S REA
payables BRI AN 211,726 257,845
- Payment for acquisition of contract ~ — UYtBE& #IRCAR
costs (BN = (29,726)
Cash generated from operations KEMEERS 375,568 334,617
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

20 RENBEEEY(AE)
(d) MEETBHELENESEYHIR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities = a5k
from financing activities, including both cash and non- gﬁggﬁggﬁégggigﬁgg
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EEaEARS RER AR S nE
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash H%E/\\$%%\/El\fﬁ%;ﬁj§%%ﬁ%@§
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash %@\JEEE’\JEE\/}?EZ@ g
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. -
Amounts
due to
related
Borrowings  Lease liabilities parties Total
JEfy
#E HESE BERE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR  ARMTn  ARMTR
(note 21) (note 23)
(Hizr21) (Hyzt2s)
At1 January 2020 R-Z-ZE-P-H 743,839 48,214 405,334 1,197,387
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSHESE.
Proceeds from borrowings [EEREHE 802,090 - - 802,090
Repayment of borrowings BREE (962,285) - - (962,285)
Repayment of lease liabities [BEfEas - (5,102) - (5,102)
Repayment of advance from related parties [EREERER - - (138,082) (138,632)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSHERY AT (160,195) (6,102 (138,532) (303,829)
Other changes: H#g .
Increase in lease liabities from entering into new leases S U HEEMEMAEERE
during the period - 484 - 484
Finance charges on lease liablties note 8() HERECREER () - 3430 - 3430
Total other changes EEees - 3914 - 3914
December 2020 and 1 January 202 “REFZA=T-ER
‘T:—E—ﬂ H 583,644 41,026 266,802 897,472
Changes from financing cash flows: HEREREST.
Procseds from borrowings BEMETE 710,726 - - 770,726
Repayment of borrowings BEfEE (841,068) - - (841,068)
Repayment of lease liabilfies [BRHERE - (4,959) - (4,959)
Repayment of advance from related parties [BEBEI2R - - (199,841) (199,841)
Total changes from financing cash flows HERSREEHAT (70,342) (4,959) (199,841) (275,142)
Other changes: -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLE (5,176) (43,721) = (48,897)
Finance charges on lease liabilties (note 8() RERGREER () - 1,654 - 1,654
Tooberconges . RURBER L L S s )
31 December 2021 R-E--F+-f=1-A 508,126 - 66,961 575,087
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAIN - LAREFE)
21 BORROWINGS 21 B8
(a) As of the reporting period, the analysis of the (@) BZEE2HBR - FEREES W
carrying amount of borrowings is as follows: T

(b)

(c)

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ET-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Bank loans IRITER
— secured — B 498,975 550,380
— unsecured — A 9,151 33,264
508,126 583,644
As of the reporting period, borrowings were (b) BEE2RPKR  EEEEENT :

repayable as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T

Within 1 year or on demand —FRFTIREK 411,359 390,631

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 57,700 41,100

After 2 years but within 5 years MEFRERFA 39,067 151,913
508,126 583,644

As of the end of the reporting period, (c) BEEHPR  BERUTEEE

borrowings were secured by the following K3

assets:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENRRE
(note 13(b)) (Ff5E13(b)) 32,685 78,292
Lease prepayments (note 13(d)) BT ERIE
(B 5E13(d)) 24,013 29,419
Pledged deposits (note 20(a)) HEIRF R (FF3E20(0)) 150,000 120,000
206,698 227,711
At 31 December 2021, the effective interest rates of the R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H &
borrowings of the Group were in the range from 1.5% EHEENETEBRFENENF15%F
to 4.65% per annum (2020: range from 1.5% to 10.8% 4.65%(—ZE-FEFE  FENF15%E
per annum). 10.8%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22 ENE SR EAMIRRR

2021 2020

—E-—F —EZTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Trade payables BB SERN 138,687 158,498
Bills payable ENEE 313,100 165,812
Trade and bills payables e E SRR N EE 451,787 324,310
Receipts in advance el A 3,241 3,372
Other payables and accruals HAb R R EETE R 30,242 51,290
485,270 378,972

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

Receipts in advance at 1 January 2021 had been fully
recognised as revenue in 2021 and its balance as at 31
December 2021 is expected to be recognised as revenue
within the 12 months after the reporting date.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

FIBRMNE S REMERERAR —FAE

=4
/B °

R - —F—F—HWEKRFEBER =

T -FREEARESE

CMERZE

—— - A=t AMEREERRS

A& 1208 A O RERR s -

REBMR - BHEZERERENRE

trade and bills payables is as follows: DITWT -
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
Due within 1 month or on demand — (@ B AR HIE IR E Sk 208,187 203,982
Due after 1 month but within 3 months —{@ A BB =18 AR5 100,000 44,607
Due after 3 months but within 6 months —1E A&EE AR E)ER 143,600 75,721
451,787 324,310

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HEAE
(a) Movement of lease liabilities is as follows: (a) HEEBZEFHWT :

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total

THREBFT EERME et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTET ARETRT

Lease liabilities HESE
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_ZTF—-H—H 3,600 44,614 48,214
Additions NE 484 - 484
Interest expense FEZH 225 3,205 3,430
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaE (999) (4,103) (5,102)
At 31 December 2020 and RN-ZZ-TF
1 January 2021 +-A=1+—8x~K
T —%—H—H 3,310 43,716 47,026
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMHB AR (2,793) (40,928) (43,721)
Interest expense FEZH 83 1,571 1,654
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (600) (4,359) (4,959)
At 31 December RZE=—F
2021 +-—A=+—H = - -
(b) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (b) BRFREMBARRREROT ¢
of financial position is as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-— —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current liabilities nRBBEE = 10,801
Non-current liabilities MBI AE - 36,225

- 47,026
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

24 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 24 EERKER

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company participate
in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal government
authorities whereby these PRC subsidiaries are required to
make a contribution at rates from 19% to 20% (2020: 19%
to 20%) of the eligible employees’ salaries to the Scheme.
The Group has accrued for the required contributions which
are remitted to the respective social security offices when
the contributions become due. The social security offices are
responsible for making the benefit payments to the retired
employees covered under the Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

The employees under the Group’s Spanish subsidiary
are regulated by law to participate in the State Pension
Scheme. The State Pension Scheme is part of the social
security system in Spain which is governed by the Ministry of
Employment and Social Security of the Spanish Government.
The Group and the employees are required to make
mandatory contributions towards the State Pension Scheme
at rates of 31.4% and 6.35% (2020: 31.4% and 6.35%),
respectively, of the employee’s relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of EUR4,070.10 (2020:
EUR4,070.10). The minimum contribution period to qualify
for the retirement benefit is 15 years, with a full pension
attainable after 37 years and 3 months years (2020: 37 years
and 3 months) of contribution.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the contributions described
above.

REMFEMNRETE

B BRI TR A RSAH - AR AFH
FEMBAREZLIMAPETREE DK
SRR TE SRR EFIFTEI([FZETE) -
Bt - ZEHENBARAEKSERES
FE19%E20% (T -TF : 19%=20%)
MFZFTEE R MR - AEE S REREIHE
BrSdeRERSNERMNOER - 1
SREEEERZTERETHRKES
SER] o

REETRE R B @G AE S EHED
BEXEBERBGEHEENESRMHLESIE
NIESFTEI([aE25TE]) - BFESFTE
BHBYZEATENRERIEKRT
gl o RIFRESHE EXRHEESE
ARFEMER - EREREEEBAKAN
5% - METNSHE B E A HE R A 30,0004 7T
B _EBR o mogtE e FEIE L KA &
BEBAL -

ANEE R TR B A R E B IRAHIIR
E2HEARENRETE - BREBEAREEE
BUEBRTFHLSREEZNES 5D - H
MEAMSREFRAMFRFEE - &
EEFXEREEBFHBFRARSFEEFE
3 HREH R AEEBEIRARSG.4%
6.35%( ZE=FF : 31.4%6.35%) °
NS HEBE A A A4,070108T(=
T _TF 0 4,070.10BT) ) EBR - FFEER
REFNSEERFEH A1 - L7
FERI@A(ZT_ZTF : I7TFEZT3AA)%
RS2 RAEKRE -

AREERR EXFTe HERIN - RBIRER
MRS ELELBEANEL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

25 SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme (the “Expired Scheme”) was
adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 17 June 2011. The Expired Scheme operated
for 10 years and expired on 16 June 2021. Upon the expiry
of the Expired Scheme, a new share award scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted by the Board on 17 June 2021 (the
“New Adoption Date”) under which shares of the Company
may be awarded to selected employees in accordance
with its provisions. The New Scheme operates for 10 years
starting from the New Adoption Date. The maximum number
of shares which may be awarded to a selected employee
under the New Scheme in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued shares as at the New Adoption
Date (being 7,737,690 shares).

25 J% 1782 EhETEl
ARREZEFE([ESERTE—FX
A+ BRMAR D SBR[ B #3181 -
EIEpETEIE B+ TR =T =Z—F X
A+ BEH- - JHAEERE EFE
RZBZ—FRATEBUFHEMNAE])
BN 2B R &I ([ 3ra181]) - Bt
RARBRHABRBEEGTRTEERNE
B - Mt EEHHENRMBEHES
H+F - REFTIARNEAN @A H
MrAm—ZEEHESRZBOROEAE £
R TNEEBRFHEMBHEETRMOEN
1% » B17,737,690Mf% (7 °

ARBERI ARG XHZEFLTEH
HE - UBE - BB BRE B2
KAt 8 AR R - ZFEARBEHG
FEENRNABTNSBEHRRARID
BITRMEV10% - B177,376,900/ /%15 ©

A trust has been set up and fully funded by the Company
for the purpose of purchasing, administrating and holding
the Company’s shares for the Expired Scheme and the
New Scheme. The total number of shares purchased by
the trustee under the New Scheme must not exceed 10%
of the issued shares as at the New Adoption Date (being
77,376,900 shares).

RIRZTEIF AR BB B8 T -

Movement in the number of shares held under the Scheme is

as follows:
2021 2020
—B--F —ZTTF
Number of Number of
shares held Amount shares held Amount
FERGEA ¥ WiEstitG G|
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR ARYT T Fhx ARBTT
At 1 January n—A—H 24,343 100,121 24,343 100,121
Shares granted to a Director FART—%
and an employee BEER—%
and fully vested during EET2E
the year HEORN (8,000) (25,182) - -
At 31 December B»t+ZA=+—H 16,343 74,939 24,343 100,121
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B HE R B =E )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

25 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) 25 fR{p iR EhET &I (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company 2 FE - —F+_A=+—HIFE "
granted 8,000,000 shares to a Director and an employee of AKAAAARNR—ZEEN—ZEERTD
the Company which were vested during the period (2020: 8,000,000/ &1 - 2 E ikt B EAA 55 BB
Nil). Details are as follows: (Z2ZZTF  |) - FBOT

Equity-settled

share-based

payment

Number of Number of Average expense

shares shares fair value recognised

Grant date Vesting date awarded vested per share in 2021

R=ZT=-—F

TR MY LA RE =

BR =] B8 HEEAORG
BRAEE BRAEBE  FHAFE X+
’000 ’000 RMB RMB’000
T T ARM ARMT T

6 May 2021 6 May 2021 4,000 4,000 0.42 1,664
“E-—FRAANH ZE-—FHANH

28 December 2021 28 December 2021 4,000 4,000 0.33 1,303
—E-—F T —F
+-—A=+/\H +—H=+/\HB
The fair value of the shares awarded on the grant date was N BEERIROH A FEEIZRE RN
determined by reference to a number of factors including the AR T EBEZBEEET -

market price of the Company’s shares.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the 2R E - FER T _FTF+ A
Company had not purchased any of the Company’s existing =+—HIFEE  AAFWEGER AR
shares on the market for the purpose of the Expired Scheme LA TS FEE AN TEAEAR
and the New Scheme. 5 e

26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26 FEMBMRRPHIFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) FmEMBARRPWEHHIERE

statement of financial position represents:

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ZE-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Provision for PRC income tax B P S A 290 408

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

B -

AAREEHE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:

(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax
assets and liabilities

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of

26 ZEMBRRKRPHFAED (A

(b) CEREEHREEE (BF) :
() EZHELEREESEDIHY

ol

FRBRERE BB RR T R
EERIREE(AB) B RE

financial position and the movements during the mr
year are as follows:
Provision for  Unrealised
impairment profits of
Withholding oftrade  intragroup  Tax losses
Deferred tax arising from: tax receivables sales  recognised Total
EWESZ SERAR
RYAE HHEENK [BY:5
EEBRERE L Bt BRRH HBER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZE-2F—-F—H (4,925) 158,980 5,019 34,009 193,083
Credited/(charged) to REgETA/ (Hk)
profit or loss (note 9(a)) (GEZE) 1,809 (15,898) (4,824) (24,485) (43,398)
At 31 December 2020 and W-Z-Z%
1 January 2021 +ZA=+-8k
—F--%-f-H (3,116) 143,082 195 9,524 149,685
Credited/(charged) to WE&ETA/ (k)
profit or loss (note 9(a)) (F9() 81 (82,389) 679 (1,028) (82,657)
At 31 December 2021 WZE-—F
+ZA=1+-H (3,035) 60,693 874 8,496 67,028
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (i) ERARES MR R
of financial position
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIAE = 70,063 152,801
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE (3,035) (3,116)
67,028 149,685
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities
in respect of temporary differences relating to
undistributed profits of RMB1,836,800,000 (2020:
RMB1,660,341,000) were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that those
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
4(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB27,217,000 (2020: RMB29,394,000) in respect
cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
All of these tax losses will expire within 5 years under the

current tax legislation.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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26 ZEMBRRKRPHFAED (A

(c) REERBWIELEHR ALK E

RZE-——F+=-A=+—08 EB@z%
Ko B FIA R #1,836,800,0007t( —
T-TF . AR¥E1,660,341,0007T)F
AT EENECHEABWARER
R REARARRHESZSHE AR
EEECR - WRAZERFERTERR
RAGHEITDIR ©

RERNWELERIEEE
RIEMTEAN)FTE S TR - A%
B AR R R IBE SR ERELERTEE
EARMED7 217,000 (Z B -4 ¢
AR®29,394,0007T) * RERZBER
FERATR 7% A A e I E B Y15 AT FA AR
HEE R FERTE R B A g 1L T K o
BIBRITHISED - A ZERTEEE
HBRAFAEIE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX - #ERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) I D HIB
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REB S I DS RN EY MBI H
balances of each component of the Group’s HEEH NG AR EEIER - AATER
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RIS D N EYE FIRNEEFIEET
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes [N

in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company /N |
Shares Employee
held for share-based Capital
Share  share award Share  compensation  redemption  Exchange Retained
capital scheme premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RERR WS
R %fiEE  &4EE
B&  KENRG  ROEE HegE B EiRE  REE a3t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W ARMFr  ARETT  ARETR ARETT  ARETT  ARMTT  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZZZ5E-F- 66,010 (100,121) 20,710 1505 3n (41,39) 129,059 76,135
Loss for the year FREiE - - - - - 2,068) (1,087) (3155

Totd comprehensive income ~ ERZEE
for the year 4% - - - - - (2,068) (1,087) (3,159
At31 December 2020and  H-E-%4
1 January 2021 TZA=+-Bk
-§-—%-f-R 66010 (100,121) 0,710 1,505 an (43464 127,968 72980

Loss for the year EhER - - - - = (1,842 (3542 (6,384

Total comprehensive income A2
forthe year 5 - - - - = (1,842 (3542 (5,384

Fouty-setfed share-based ~ HLEREEHRG

transaction RS % - - - 2967 - - - 2967
Vesting of shares granted under 1R 5RR 1 2R3 215 E

share award scheme BRLRH % - 2,182 (20,710) (447 - - - -
At 31 December R-E=-%

ot +oAz1-8 66010 (149%9) - - M N6 144 70583
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b)

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021

(2020: Nil).

(c) Share capital

(c)

Details of authorised and issued share capital are as

8=\

W

27 B - RERIRE (&)

EEeV TEERBEE T —F1+=
A=+t — AL FEIRMEFRRARE

(CE=%F: M)

&N

RTERBBEITTRAGFENT ¢

follows:
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Authorised: JETE -
2,000,000,000 shares of 2,000,000,000/%
HK$0.1 each ERXEEO. 178 LA 200,000 200,000
Par Number of Nominal value of
value shares ordinary shares
HE KROHE ZEREE
HK$ ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
BIT T FHET ARBTT
Issued and fully paid: BEZTREE
At 31 December 2020 and RIEBE_TF
31 December 2021 +=—A=1+—H8xK
T —F
+=—A=+—H 0.10 773,769 77,377 66,010

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may
be applied for payment of distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

(i) Shares held for share award scheme

Shares held for share award scheme comprised
shares purchased and held which will be awarded
to selected employees in accordance with share

award scheme.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Employee share-based compensation reserve

Employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of employee services in
respect of share granted to certain employees of
the Group.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated
in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their
after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year losses) as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity owners.

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprised the excess on
transfer of equity from non-controlling interests
in Boer Yixing, Boer Wuxi and Yixing Boai over
purchase considerations prior to 1 January 2011.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal
amount of the shares repurchased.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside the
PRC which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 4(0).

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

27 B - HERRE(E)

(d) RENEERARE)

LA 4 2 S BV B S & i

PARU i XA RO R B N & A HE B X
TAKEETRENRDERNE
BIRFH) D FE

EERE
RIBFBUERMRTE » ARARRTE
AL R T B A R R E AR IR
&R R FORMRETE MIBR TR
A (B E EFEERIZ)H10%
BEEERHFHE  BEERBER
FEHGEMEAS0% B - BAR
AV AR A A 70 RSB AT B 2Rk fet
e

ETE R RE A AR AT EE
MERE)  WAIEARA - 8
BITROEH TR I RNEMEARE
25% °

EX R
EXNFREEHEEES - FEE
B M BRI e IR A S R A
BEA—FT——F— A BANE
BEREMER -

EXRE#FE
BEAEOFEEEBRDAEE -

(vii) BB R {EE

PE 53 et B AR E A BB SNR S
TSR PFELEN —INEZR -
ZIRE TR B T 40) PR & 5T IR
RERIE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Company defines “capital” as including all
components of equity. The Group actively and regularly
reviews and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These
risks are limited by the Group’s financial management

policies and practices.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and bills receivable. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks

are monitored on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2021, except for credit impaired
balances with gross amount of RMB1,635,001,000 that
have been assessed individually, the Group measures
loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between

the Group’s different customer bases.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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e NEE - WRREERENZ(CEH
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28 WK ERERE
AEBAAENEE - RPES - FIXR
SMNERRREARENBEERYE - ZFR
o DA AN S5 [ 19 B 765 8 B2 IR 3R S 18 91 i LA BR

(a) EERBS

AEENEERREIZREEBKES
RRMERERE - ERECHEEER
R UHERESZEEERR

RZZE_—F+_A=+—8H  KEs
2 A AR #1,635,001,000 7T K= B R
BT ETEBIFHEIN - REEER
HEREEGFER BHEESENS
B(EHLBEERREERETESEL)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

28 B R ERE (&)

(a)

FERR(E)
TREHRERAKERE 5 RUGIRRM
HRNEERRIEREEBEENE

receivables: o
2021
—E-—fF
Gross  Expected
Discounted carrying loss rate Loss
factor amount (%) allowance
HH
| ES
BER®E  AREE (%)  EEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Within 3 months TR=MA 1 197,370 1% 1,974
Over 3 months but BiB={EA
within 6 months BRENEA 1 102,145 2% 2,043
Over 6 months but within 1 year — Bi@/NEAERNE—F 1 202,940 4.5% 9,132
Over 1 year (note) BB —F () 0.91 1,692,413 0-100% 1,635,001
2,194,868 1,648,150
2020
e S5
Gross Expected
Discounted carrying loss rate Loss
factor amount (%) allowance
TEHA
ARE  AEREE (%)  EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Within 3 months TRZ=MEA 1 203,453 1% 2,034
Over 3 months but BB ={EA
within 6 months BREAEA 1 97,148 2% 1,943
Over 6 months but within 1 year — #Bi@/NEBERE—4F 1 219,009 4.5% 9,856
Over 1 year (note) i —F (M) 091 1,804,707 0-100% 1,770,301

2,324,317 1,784,134

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is based on the
invoice date.

Note: ECLs at 0% — Collaterals have been obtained from certain
customers, and typically comprise properties and land. No
impairment loss is provided for the debtor balance when
the collateral has a value greater than the debtor balance.

B PR IRZ R DT HENER
HifE

Mt BALLAEMERERERE — BIE
REETEFPMERD  —REEYE
Rt o WA REESRERERZ
RS - BN S E MR AR IE R
EEERRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

28 FI

SN AAREFHE)

NANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtor is
updated.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables are disclosed in
note 19(a).

Bank acceptance bills endorsed to its suppliers
which are not yet due as at 31 December 2021 were
amounted to RMB340,780,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB233,049,000). These bank acceptance bills were
derecognised by the Group (the “Derecognised Bills”).
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of
the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The Derecognised Bills generally have
maturity dates of 180 days, and the Group in general
endorses the bank acceptance bills equivalent to their
face value. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 0.5%, 2.6% and 0.8%
(2020: 0%, 7.6% and 4.0%) of the total trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer, the
five largest customers and largest debtor as at 31
December 2021. The maximum exposure to credit risk
is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance.
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BB ER

JEUE 5 R B EREE D TR M E19()
HEE o

KRB —F+A=+—HEETE
HERmMHABHNRITRALEERSHE
B ARB340,780,0007( —E - T4
+=—A=+—H : AR®233,049,000
TL) c ZERITEAREBEDRAAERR
IEFER([ R IEERERE]) - BREBEFEE
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BEABEAAEERIER(FES
H])  BEERE  AEBCERARER

IHFERZERNBAE D R M @R -
It AREED K EHER ”EJJ:E%M—TF&

HARNEZRRNEEREESHE -
HKIFEREEMNREEAEE A1808 -
MmAEE RS EHFNHEENIRIT
ERRE - BERR - AEERESH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEASN - AAREFHE)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management at the Group level

As at 31 December 2021, even though the Group had
net current assets of RMB69,433,000, its short term
bank borrowings amounted to RMB411,359,000, while
the Group maintained its cash and cash equivalents of
RMB77,735,000 only.

In view of such circumstances, the Directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern for at least the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due.
Certain measures have been and are being taken to
manage the Group’s liquidity needs and to improve its
financial position which include, but are not limited to,
the following:

(i) the controlling shareholders, Mr Qian Yixiang and Ms
Jia Lingxia, have undertaken to provide continuing
financial support, including not to recall the amounts
due to them of RMB66,961,000 until the Group is
able to repay its other creditors in the normal course
of business;

(i) the Group has renewed several loan facility
agreements with the controlling shareholders
and their related parties with an effective period
of 3 years. The loans are non-current, unsecured
and non-interest bearing. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s unused loans facilities were
RMB878,556,000;

28 K EAREE(HF)

(b) REVE E R B

SEEARBESRREE
NRZTE-_—F+-_A=+—8 &
EAEBERNRHEEFEAARKE
69,433,0007C ' B H G HETEE
B AR 411,359,000 7T © AN EH
EHRFEASIASEEMAARE
77,735,0007C °

ENZEHER  ARRERCHAZE
REBARRORBE S MKRBENEAH
BE2HR AR RE R B miE
EEHBPRENTRD+ —EAAFEL
& WEDHSEITERS - ARED
RYEAERDRE THREEEERSES
FRIBFEF RN - BREETRR
ATt

() TERRRRERERMEEREAEL L
EREHBENB I BREELR
SEEEMT I EREBBIEFEER
hERAZ AT - TEEAENES
2 &% AR¥66,961,0007T

(i) ANEBEEBRBEREEHR S
BRETERRE R  BXHAS
F o BERAIERD - EIEH TG
B -RZE-Z—F+ZA=+—
B ZEEAXEREZRBEAAR
#878,556,0007T :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

28 FI

SN AAREFHE)

NANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk management at the Group level
(continued)

(i) as at 31 December 2021, the unused bank loans
facilities were RMB448,673,000 for providing
additional working capital to the Group; and

(iv) during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group has renewed its short term bank borrowings
of RMB407,767,000 and obtained new borrowings
of RMB362,959,000. The Directors of the
Company, based on their ongoing discussions with
the Group’s bankers, expect the Group’s bankers
to renew the existing bank facilities as they fall due.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Liquidity risk management at the entity level

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Board/management of the
entities. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk management at the entity level

(continued)

28 B R ERE (&)

The following table presents the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Total

Carrying  contractual
amountat undiscounted

31 December cash flow
Rt=A T
=t-B  AfRRS
HEREE itk
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR

ARETR

(b) RBE SRR (H)

EREERDESARER(A)

TREJAEESHBABR2HBRN
RIS HBIHHR - LIRBEA KR
RReRE(BEREONEFTENH
BENF) EAKEAREEHARNR
FRYHE

More than
2years but
less than

More than
Within 1 year but

1 year or less than More than

on demand PATCEH 5years 5years

-Ehg, —F0E MENL

BEX  BRFNR
RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT

BEEWR  EFML
RMB000  RMB'000
ARMTR  ARMTR

Borrowings T 508,126 526,935 419,542 61,803 45,500 -
Trade and other payables EREZREMES 485,270 485,270 485,270 - - -
Amounts due to related parties  JE[YB& 7 2B 66,961 66,961 - - 66,961 -
1,060,357 1,079,166 904,812 61,803 112,461 -
2020
“ZC%E

Total More than More than

Carrying contractual Within Tyearbut  2yearshut
amountat  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years

Rt=A &

=t-B  FhER: R &k ML
e it B2k ERENA  ERENA RELLE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETL  ARETT ARETn  ARETT ARETn  ARETR
Borrowings ] 583,644 583,644 390,631 41,100 151,913 -
Trade and other payables ERE S RAME 378972 378,972 378,972 - - -
Amounts due to related parties  E[TEE 5 28 266,02 266,802 - 266,802 - -
Lease libilties HEBE 47,006 53892 13933 18,307 18,959 2693
1,276,444 1,283,310 783,536 326,209 170,872 2,693
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
interest rate profile is set out below:

28 B R ERE (&)

Effective

interest rate
per annum

BRRERZ

Fixed rate instruments:

(c) FIZRE

REBFERBRFEREEMESE ©
RESMBELE ZIEEEAEEFEAT
BERERRE - REBEFEGRETILN
™

2020
e S -3
Effective
Interest rate
RMB’000 per annum RMB'000

ARBTT kS ARBTTT

TE
Borrowings ETE 1.5% - 4.65% 508,126  1.5%-10.8% 583,644
Lease liabilities HERE - - 53%-82% 47,026
Total instruments TEEE 508,126 630,670

(d) Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the
PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly denominated
in RMB, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
RMB must take place through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for
the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign
currency risk as it had minimal export sales in the year
and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s
total sales is minimal.

The management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk for the Group for both years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28 B R ERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair value (e) A¥E
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at REBNETEMEE RN FE
fair value. The fair value of these financial assets and the £ ZEeMEEN AT ERMGER
valuation techniques are as follows: N

Fair value at 31 December
R+ZA=+-BNAYE

Fair value Valuation

Financial assets 2021 2020  hierarchy techniques Key inputs
LHEE b bl —T-TF  QNVESH ERE TEHAUE

RMB'000 [TV
ARSTT NS

Unlisted equity investment - 28511 Level3 Discounted cash flow @Grid-connected generation of
FEMRARE F=0 TERERE electricity per annum;
Weighted average cost of capital;
EBITDA margins; and
Major capital expenditure.

GEjERES:
METIERRA :
ERAEEHNAEE : R
FEEAF °
Bills receivable 5,186 5835  Level2 Face value Fair value of bills receivable
EHEE FZfh e} approximates to their carrying
amounts (i.e. face value of bank
acceptance bills), as the Group
in general endorses the bank
acceptance bills equivalent to their
face value.
ARARE-RESRSHEER
WRTEERE - JEREENR
TEEERRERIAIREN
HfE)RE -
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair BRIEEA N ERGAZISE (=)
value based on significant unobservable inputs (level 3) NEEYENSRTENONENT -
are as follows:
Financial assets at FVTPL
RAFEFABRNEREE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR¥BFIT
Unlisted equity investment FEETRARE
At 1 January m—H—8 28,511 10,556
Addition NE - 16,716
Changes in fair value recognised in FRRIBRERD
profit or loss during the year NEHEES) 2,135 1,239
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAT (30,646) -
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H - 28,511

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

29 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 29 ZEHEITHNEREERBEEN
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value TERBALREHEENEENERELAT
of financial assets and liabilities: A :
Year 2021 B
Financial assets SHMEE

Financial
assets Financial
at FVOCI assets
—-debt atamortised
instruments cost

BATERA

Hit2mE k= g

EMEE— B AR5 B
BEEIA ZEMEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARMT T

Trade receivables JEWE SRR - 546,718 546,718
Bills receivable R E I 5,186 = 5,186
Financial assets included in STAFENZIE 73
prepayments, deposits and [z E b fE U FRIEH)
other receivables EREE - 27,810 27,810
Pledged deposits BHEPER - 217,648 217,648
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIBSEEY - 77,735 77,735
5,186 869,911 875,097
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RHBERA
FilRz SREE
RMB’000
ARETR
Trade payables FETE ZERR 138,687
Bills payable ANEE 313,000
Financial liabilities included in other payables FTAEAM B RIER
and accrual JEETERMNSRAaE 33,483
Borrowings BE 508,126
Amounts due to related parties FEfT A= SR 66,961

1,060,257

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL §TATEME Ts'f(conﬁnued) Sor_t
BT SRR MY ) il 1
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RBBHBIN - UAREERE)
29 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 20 REHETHERMEEREEN

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED) W= (E)

Year 2020 —ECEHE

Financial assets SRMEE

Unlisted equity investment JEETRARE 28,511 - - 28,511
Trade receivables JEME 5 8RR - - 540,183 540,183
Bills receivable JEME - 5,835 - 5,835
Financial assets included in FFATEFIE - TR
prepayments, deposits and T E At EUGRIB R
other receivables SREE - - 57,481 57,481
Pledged deposits BESFHK - - 184,331 184,331
Cash and cash equivalents R MRS EEY - - 39,866 39,866
28,511 5,835 821,861 856,207
Financial liabilities THAE

Trade payables JERTE SRR 158,498
Bills payable AN 165,812

Financial liabilities included in other payables T AEALES FRIE R
and accrual EErERNEmARE 54,662
Lease liabilities HERE 47,026
Borrowings ®7E 583,644
Amounts due to related parties FETRAE 77 5RIA 266,802
1,276,444

BEEHEZERERLDT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 FEFEEIRS

TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors are
of the view that the following parties are related parties of the

HE—T-—FT-_A=-T—HIEFE-
EF A T E 5 AR EEN B

Group:
Name of party Relationship
MABLnE B8 R
Mr. Qian Yixiang Controlling shareholder and Director
BRMEE BB RRES
Ms. Jia Lingxia Controlling shareholder and Director
BEEERL ERRRFRES

King Able Limited

Immediate parent of the Group which is 50% owned by each of

(“King Able”) Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia, both of which are controlling
shareholders and Directors
WEAR QA REBENERFRA] - HEFMEEREEELT (G RITFRIRERFRE
(reg]) BE)XBEHEAS0%ESE

Wuxi Boer Power Instrumentation
Company Limited (“Wuxi Boer”)

EHEEENEEARAR
(TEmiHIBE])

Bright Rise Trading Limited
(“Bright Rise”)

Effectively 93.34% and 6.66% owned by Mr. Qian Haosheng, a
close family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei,
a family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, respectively

DRIRERIEE (ERRRFEFERM T ERESTEMRALEZ
EEREKE) KA REE(ERRRFESTERMTCERESE
HERSE A 2 REEK B ) B s H93.34% 1 1 )26.66% 5

50% owned by each of Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia, both of
which are controlling shareholders and Directors

HAEZERAT] HEFRREREABR T (Y RERERRES) & B HA0%E
(Te&=1) i

Boer Investment (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

(“Boer Singapore”)
BERE () GRAR
(TEEFINE )

Boer Smart (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Boer Smart”)

HEERE(BE)BRAF
(MEEEEE])

Boer Smart Technology (Wuxi)
Co., Ltd.* (“Boer Smart Wuxi”)

BEEEMX(ES)BRAR
(MBEEEEH))

80% directly owned by Ms. Jia Lingxia, a controlling shareholder and
Director
MR R R EFTEEZE LT HEERSO%E R

Effectively 50% owned by each of Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia
Lingxia, both of which are controlling shareholders and Directors
HERMEEREZERT(MAERKRRFAES) S EaESR
50% &5

Effectively 1.30%, 57.26%, 37.33% and 2.67% owned by Mr.
Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and Director, Ms. Jia Lingxia,
controlling shareholder and Director, Mr. Qian Haosheng, a close
family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei,
a family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, respectively
ARIBERRRFRESERMEE  ERBRRFEEEEEL L+
BEFEE(ERBRRFZSERMEEREFEMPLE BHRK
EXE) KB AEE(BERRRRESERMEERESEMAL
EZREKE)BERER1.30% s - 57.26% %5 ~ 37.33%Em K&
2.67%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Name of party
) hap St

Shanghai Changcheng Construction
Development Company Limited*
(“Shanghai Changcheng”)

PERWERFAERRAR
(=327 0)

Boer Energy
BHELIR

30 FEMELRS (HF)

Relationship

B%

Effectively 33.5%, 16.5%, 46.67% and 3.33% owned by Mr. Qian
Zhongming, a Director, Mr. Qian Yixiang, a controlling shareholder
and Director, Mr. Qian Haosheng, a close family member of Mr.
Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and Director and Mr. Qian
Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei, a family member of
Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and Director and Mr. Qian
Zhongming, a Director, respectively

DRIRBREMAXLE BERBRRFEFERMLE BETEE
(R RFREFERMEENESTRFRLEE ZRRERE) R
AR E (R RFEFERMLENEREBPALE 2 REK
B)EHHEH33.5%E - 16.5% 4 - 46.67% Mz N3.33%

Effectively 54% and 6% owned by Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia
Lingxia, both of which are controlling shareholders and Directors
DARBERMEEREEBELL(ORERKRERRER)ERESR
54%HE 6% T

* The English translation of the company names is for reference only.
The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(a) Financial assistance from related parties

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere above, the Group and the Company entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a) REBAER 2B &
Br LAl ER 2 RsE T BRIN - RERER
ARBFIL TN ER@ENRS ©

() Transactions i X%

Cash advances from related parties BaRsE IR S B
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
2} pag e AR¥T T AREF T
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEEEN+ -

Settlement of cash advances from related parties

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
o yag Rt AR¥T T ARBTT
Mr. Qian Yixiang SRR A 156,426 -
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEEn+ - 17,023
Wuxi Boer mHEE 50,000 121,432
Bright Rise fE 5 17,751 -
Boer Smart BEEE - 77
224,177 138,532
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assistance from related parties
(continued)

30 FEBELRS (&)
(a) REBEER 2B EE (&)

() Transactions (continued) (i) XZ(#E)

Net outstanding amounts owed to related parties RS 2 REEFIRFEE

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
) yap Tt AR¥T T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Mr. Qian Yixiang SR E - 156,426
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEETT 34,065 9,729
King Able k=] 22,813 22,813
Wuxi Boer mISEHE 10,083 60,083
Bright Rise = - 17,751
66,961 266,802

(i) BEESER
mEESTET 2 EREE
BIE@EER (EAER)BAEEH
(EAEH IR - - —FFHHH
HEREEHS  ~NEBERER
BEEE—REEESHRRE -

(ii) Loans from related parties

Loans facilities granted from related parties
Pursuant to several loan facility agreements
renewed in 2021, the related parties as lenders
and the Group as borrower, loan facilities were
granted to the Group for its general working capital
purposes.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L p S TEL ST )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assistance from related parties

(continued)

30 FEMELRS (HF)

(i) Loans from related parties (continued) (i) BESERE)

Those loans are all unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable according to the terms of

(a) REBEER 2B EE (&)

ZEEFY REER - T ERA

R IRRIEE

agreements.
Name of party 2021 2020
MBS BB —E--f ZTTF
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and SRR AE RMB500,000,000 RMB500,000,000
King Able EREnt LEE and and
US$1,393,000  US$1,393,000
ARY AR
500,000,0005c  500,000,0007T
)54 &
1,393,000 T 1,393,000 7T
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEELT HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/t 2,000,000/ 7C
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Mr. Qian Zhongming BRMEE RMB300,000,000 RMB300,000,000
and Wuxi Boer BEMRLER AR AR
EHIEH 300,000,0005t  300,000,0007C
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and SRR AE RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000
Bright Rise BEABATRIER ARH ARH
100,000,000t 100,000,0007C
Mr. Qian Yixiang and Boer Singapore SR ER - RMB200,000,000
BEIME ARE
200,000,0007T
Boer Smart BEE RMB35,000,000 RMB35,000,000
ARM AR
35,000,000 35,000,0007C
(iii) Unused loans facilities (i) RERERRE
2021 2020
—E--F —T-TF
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
BB NS BB AR¥ETR ARBFT
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BRORLE
King Able EEERTRETE 453,639 478,199
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Mr. Qian Zhongming BROREA  EMeREE
and Wuxi Boer NEHEE 289,917 239,917
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BEROREE
Bright Rise ERERTRIER 100,000 82,249
Mr. Qian Yixiang and Boer Singapore BRI E RIEE R I - 43,574
Boer Smart R 35,000 35,000
878,556 878,939
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

B -

AAREEHE)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial guarantees received from related
parties

(c)

At 31 December 2021, borrowings amounting to
RMB329,100,000 were guaranteed by Mr. Qian Yixiang,
Ms. Jia Lingxia and Shanghai Changcheng (2020:
RMB339,500,000).

Tran

sactions with a related party

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the transactions for the year with a
related party are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the

42N

o

30 FEMELRS (HF)

(b) EZREMEER ZHKER
RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—"H AR

#.329,100,000 L (ZE_ZTF : AR
#5339,500,0007T ) Z & E M 50 %

Ao

BABXE R EBRBEHER -

(c) B—2FESHNRS

AN
T

FEMERS(EER
B s EmARA
(T LAl

Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”): F14AE) :
— Processing fee income from Boer - REBESESHK
Smart Wuxi (note (i) mIBUWA
(B =EG)
— Purchase from Boer Smart Wuxi - BEEEEG RS
(note (ii)) (B (Gi))

RAMBHRREM T MRES
FRE-BABTETHISHMN

2021 2020
s T _Z4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
1,300 3,500
7,353 577

Notes:

(i

(i)

Pursuant to the processing subcontracting framework
agreement dated 6 August 2020, Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing
and Boer Tezhong provided assembly and processing
services for manufacture of intelligent household equipment
to Boer Smart Wuxi amounted to RMB1,300,000 (2020:
RMB3,500,000).

Pursuant to the purchase framework agreement dated
6 August 2020, Temper Energy purchased intelligent
household equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi amounted
to EUR965,000 (equivalent to RMB7,353,000) (2020:
EUR73,000 (equivalent to RMB577,000)).

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with
the terms mutually agreed by both contract parties with
reference to market prices.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEHERERAE
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RIER-_Z_FF N\AXNEMILEH
PREEIE 22 %955  Temper Energy 8 H
BEEDRESERRAEMNSEA
965,000 7T (#5574 A R # 7,353,000
TO)(ZZEZZ 4 : 73,0008 7t (HBER
AER#577,0007T)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R 2R M =t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 11, is as

TERELRS (HF)

d) TEEBEASHMH
AEBET2EEABHM(BIEMEEI0
IR EE SN T AR RIE R SRS
HIAREXNTETHSHMER
MR

follows:
2021 2020
—E2-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT
Contributions to defined contribution A EHEFERIRET B3R
retirement plans 268 95
Equity-settled share-based payment AR EE RN
expenses (note 25) S (HEE25) 1,664 -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TR EAMmER 5,097 3,773
7,029 3,868

(e) The Listing Rules applicable to connected
transactions

The transactions with a related party Boer Smart Wuxi
in note (c) above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in sections
headed “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Report of the Directors.

(e) BRAREAEXRZH EHHRA

PR ()Pl ER RRE S B E R A 85
MR ZEK ENRAE14ATFIRTED
MEXGRIFEMERS - LHHRAE
YAEFMRENREERAHENESTSY
EAER S IR FEMERXS IS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B IS IR R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BABHBIN - UARKERHE)

31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31 AR BB R R

THE COMPANY
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIERRIIRE 16 39,997 39,997
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEUHI B N B IE 38,374 40,328
Cash at bank RITRE 26 43
38,400 40,371
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAbFERFRIE 4 5
Amounts due to related parties FETRE 5 0E 7,830 7,383
.~ 784 7,388
Netcurrentassets =~~~ #B®E®E 30,566 82,983
NET ASSETS EEFE 70,563 72,980
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRF#E 27(a)
Share capital N 66,010 66,010
Reserves i 4,553 6,970
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 70,563 72,980

32 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 32 EEEZERARERERS

PARTY

At 31 December 2021, the Directors consider the immediate RZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H EFRE
parent of the Group to be King Able Limited and the ultimate AEENERS AR RAEBRKIERS
controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. AR AREBRATEBERALEEREE
Jia Lingxia. King Able Limited is incorporated in the BVI and EXL HWMEARAFRIININABEZES
does not produce financial statements available for public TR - WERERRMBHREREAREH -
use.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2021 annual general meeting will be held in Hong Kong on Thursday, 9 June 2022.
Notice of the 2021 annual general meeting will be issued and dispatched to the shareholders in
due course.

PUBLICATION OF FINAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT

The Company’s annual results announcement is published on the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.boerpower.com.

The annual report of the Company for year ended 31 December 2021 will be dispatched to the
shareholders in due course.

APPRECIATION

The Board of the Company would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support and the fellow Directors and our staff for their
dedication and hard work.

By order of the Board
Boer Power Holdings Limited
Qian Yixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises (i) five executive Directors: Mr.
Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia, Mr. Zha Saibin (Mr. Yu Wai Ming as his alternate), Mr. Qian
Zhongming and Mr. Yu Wai Ming; and (ii) three independent non-executive Directors: Mr.
Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin and Mr. Lai Wai Leuk.





